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Financial Highlights

(B 5 B i BF 91 - LA 8 F T 51| 8~ Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars thousands unless otherwise specified)
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change 2008 2007
KR Results of Operations
= Turnover 8.5% 1,110,115 1,022,818
EA Gross profit 6.2% 671,454 631,991
ETAES Gross margin -21% 60.5% 61.8%
A Profit from operations 0.9% 102,515 101,571
4R A s | 2R Operating margin -71% 9.2% 9.9%
HEMEGEN S Valuation gain on investment
properties -28.0% 13,400 18,600
HERE R Gain on disposal of investment
properties - 45,589 -
JE(RHS & N Bla AR Share of profits less losses
E518 of associates 60.5% 34,099 21,252
NN R R EAL Profit attributable to equity
il shareholders of the Company 44.8% 170,997 118,121
H ) 2 Net profit margin 33.9% 15.4% 11.5%
AR —HAR Earnings per share — basic 44.2% $1.11 $0.77
BIRAF — % Earnings per share — diluted - N/A N/A
RS Dividend per share 66.7% $0.75 $0.45
RS AR Financial Position
KREXEBEE RS Cash generated from operations 36.6% 165,977 121,477
Re RBITFERR Cash and bank deposits less
RERITERREX short-term bank loans and overdrafts 73.1% 237,691 137,283
mENE ERE Net current assets 22.1% 330,883 270,956
AR R AR Shareholders’ equity 15.2% 838,565 727,681
% ER 42 2 [0 =R Return on shareholders’ equity 25.9% 20.4% 16.2%
o ZEEBERAF LABSHREEB11.101ET ° . Turnover increased by 8.5% to HK$1,110.1 million from last year.
e KEHF ABE1 02T BEF LA . Profit from operations was HK$102.5 million, an increase of 0.9% as compared
0.9% ° with last year.

e ARREZBEEEEFNABE1TET
ERBEREMEMGE RS EE1,3408 TR
HEREYHE W EK45608 T -

] Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company amounted to HK$171
million which included a valuation gain on investment properties of HK$13.4 million
and a gain on disposal of investment properties of HK$45.6 million.
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YGME ZBRAEIFE

Chan Sui Kau
Chairman of YGM Trading Limited

| have pleasure in presenting to our shareholders the Annual Report of
YGM Trading Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries and
associates (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Group Results

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, | am pleased to
report that turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008
increased by 8.5% to HK$1,110,115,000 (2007: HK$1,022,818,000).
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company grew by
44.8% to HK$170,997,000 (2007: HK$118,121,000).

Dividends

The Directors have resolved to recommend payments of a special
dividend of HK$0.30 (2007: HK$Nil) per ordinary share and a final
dividend of HK$0.32 (2007: HK$0.32) per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 March 2008 at the forthcoming annual general meeting to
be held on Wednesday, 10 September 2008. The special and final
dividends totalling HK$95,376,000 (2007: HK$49,226,000), if approved
by the shareholders, are expected to be paid on or around Thursday,
11 September 2008 to those shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 2 September
2008.

Review of Operations

Garment retail and marketing

The Group concentrates in marketing various brands in Mainland China,
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. We also have a small number of outlets
in South East Asia and Europe.



MICHEL RENE

MICHEL RENEFE1976E XS * RE B R BLFRER - KB ERAMEH RS - WA T8 HEE]
ABRIATE  AREHEGEY  FAETEHRE ABRHMANBEZRHEZEREEENRE -

MICHEL RENER 2006F #1 BB B MR ER B M [2006B B E M2 RRNESVRERE
E e R MCHELRENEEZ A TEER MM B (WHERHE — BEHYELANZEF
ExERBTER] -

Established in 1976, MICHEL RENE carries a full line of men’s and women'’s executive and city wear and
accessories. MICHEL RENE always maintains its integrity and contemporary style which enables young
and modern people to mix-and-match creatively for all occasions.

In early 2006, MICHEL RENE achieved the ‘Hong Kong Top Brand Award 2005’ organised by the Hong
Kong Brand Development Council. The brand image is affirmed. In the same year, MICHEL RENE was
awarded the ‘Service Retailer of the Year in Fashion & Accessories’ by the ‘Mystery Shoppers Programme’,
organised by the Hong Kong Retail Management Association.
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Review of Operations (continued)

Garment retail and marketing (continued)
Aquascutum

As at the end of March 2008, the Group has 149 outlets in
Mainland China, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan. The Group is a
long-term licensee of this up-market British brand, which
continues to be successful in Mainland China with its increased
number of affluent consumers.

Ashworth

The Group has 72 outlets in our licensed territories as at the end
of March 2008. The American label continues its success as golf
becomes increasingly popular.

Guy Laroche

The Group owns the worldwide rights to this French brand. The
head office at Paris recorded losses in the first half of the financial
year but was able to prevent further losses during the second
half of the financial year. Global royalty income increased in terms
of US dollars.

Michel René

As of the end of March 2008, we operated 91 outlets in Hong
Kong, Macau, Mainland China and Taiwan. We are in the process
of revamping this label.

Charles Jourdan

The Group has reduced losses of this division with increased use
of distributors and closing of unprofitable outlets.

Hang Ten

The Group also owns a 20.48% stake in Hang Ten Group Holdings
Limited (“Hang Ten”) which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Hang Ten
reports significant increase in profits and is expanding in Mainland
China.



IR B £ BN B Ashworthi® 1987 B 32 » E HIREE W  STEMN B X s B AR AKBEERRSY] - EXE
Darrell Survey JHE &H R EF - Ashworthm B K BKMM FEXREE+ —FIHIEFE — L - M@ IE X R 2002F £2005
FR(GPFESERX)EFES (REEEELSBARE] KK 20014F = 20074 5 18 WX E(S BB i
(AR ZARESBRAAE —REBELa@ARE] -

AN E A Ashworth K T EEM R R RE A 2RI « AshworthTi 8 H ABE T IRHE R W R - £ 20054 & 2007
FRE-FESELATEEHW B [MNERTE — BEGYEEILFPIHERARNZE2FERE
REZEER] -

Ashworth was established in California, U.S.A. in 1987. It markets a full line of quality men’s & women’s golf apparel
and casual merchandise, featuring natural style and relaxed fit. According to the Darrell Survey of the U.S.A., Ashworth
has been ranked ‘Number One Apparel Brand in Golf’ eleven years in a row. The brand has also been selected as ‘My
Favorite Men’s Apparel’ by ‘China Golf” Magazine from 2002 to 2005 and, ‘The Best Golf Awards - Best Golf Apparel
(Men)’” by ‘Golf Digest’ Magazine (Chinese Edition) four times from 2001 to 2007.

The Group is the licensee for the Greater China Region and Thailand. Ashworth is also highly recognised for its
quality service. Ashworth was awarded the ‘Service Retailer of the Year in Fashion & Accessories — Sports & Outdoor
Products Category’ by the ‘Mystery Shoppers Programme’ during 2005 to 2007 by the Hong Kong Retail Management
Association.

Ashworth.
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Review of Operations (continued)

Other business
Garment Manufacturing

The Group’s manufacturing plant in Dongguan recorded the first annual
loss suffering from vastly increased staff and fuel costs, and government
charges.

Property

Rental income from industrial buildings increased with the buoyant
economy in Hong Kong. As announced in a separate circular in
February 2008, the Group sold about 40,000 square foot of space at
an old industrial building in Chai Wan for HK$75,311,000 realising a
profit of HK$45,589,000.

Printing

The security printing business returned a record turnover of
HK$41,668,000 and contribution from operations of HK$6,042,000
for the year.

Prospects and Developments

The prospects of consumer markets worldwide is not encouraging
and the Group will make efforts to counter such an adverse climate.
With the Group’s significant liquid funds, the Group can take advantage
of this economic climate in case an opportunity arises.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this opportunity
to express my sincere appreciation to all employees who devoted
themselves to the Group during the past year. Their contributions are
unfailing and most instrumental to the success of the Group. | also
take this opportunity to extend our gratitude to our shareholders,
customers, business partners and suppliers for their steadfast support
of the Group.

Chan Sui Kau
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 July 2008



W B AquascutumR 1851F XY » —ERmA LT — D REREEREAXNEFTNHT T
2 FARNTHEEEYRGT  AEHREREBEIEERNRERFNERNRE o ka4
BREDD ZREAERE BRREREFIE  HERHEEZE - BEHTF © AguascutumfE
STERTER  BUAEHM UWEZAFENSK -

AEBRSARBEWR - FINK  SRATRFENEARE BHESERE BETHRIL
¥R BEAIRITHRAESE -

Aquascutum— B BB FRHEBENRY » H2004F E2006F EBE - A EBFETEEEH IR
BeRERTE RO ESARRARN2FERERBTEHE] -

British label Aquascutum has been a part of London city life since its establishment in 1851. Its heritage is
rooted in excellent British tailoring and it has always had a keen eye on fashion, creating an understated
elegance and stylishly luxurious look. Its sartorial confidence, authentic quality and fine craftsmanship
shown in the faultless attention to detail is trusted throughout the world. Over the decades the brand has
dressed the powerful: British royalty, politicians and celebrities.

The Group is the licensee for the Greater China Region, Singapore, Malaysia and Thailand. Aquascutum is
positioned as an upmarket brand and targets entrepreneurs, professionals and executives.

Aquascutum’s high standard of service is well recognised. The brand achieved the ‘Service Retailer of the
Year in Fashion & Accessories - High Fashion Category’ of the ‘Mystery Shoppers Programme’ organised
by the Hong Kong Retail Management Association three times from 2004 to 2006.

A guascutum
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Results of Operations

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 amounted to
HK$1,110,115,000, representing a 8.5% increase when compared
with HK$1,022,818,000 for the previous year. Total sales of garments,
the Group’s principal business, grew by 8.8% to HK$998,303,000
(2007: HK$917,708,000), representing 89.9% (2007: 89.7%) of the
consolidated turnover. In addition, total royalty and related income of
HK$65,145,000 (2007: HK$61,164,000) was received from external
customers during the year.

Gross profit of the Group for the year increased by 6.2% to
HK$671,454,000 (2007: HK$631,991,000). The gross margin was
60.5% as compared with 61.8% for the previous year.

Profit from operations for the year ended 31 March 2008 amounted to
HK$102,515,000, representing a slight increase from that reported
last year. Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for
the year was HK$170,997,000 (2007: HK$118,121,000) which
included a valuation gain on investment properties amounting to
HK$13,400,000 (2007: HK$18,600,000) and a gain on disposal of
investment properties of HK$45,589,000 (2007: HK$NIl).

Business Review

Sales of garments

The Group’s core business is the retailing and wholesaling of fashion
apparel. Total sales of garments for the year recorded a 8.8% increase
in turnover as compared to the previous year. Contribution from
operations from sales of garments declined slightly from
HK$89,421,000 for the previous year to HK$88,058,000. As of the
end of March 2008, the Group operates 339 outlets, mainly in the
Greater China region.



CHARLES JOURDAN

7% B & f2 Charles Jourdanf® 1921F ALY » MEFEEMNRT - BITHAZHR
MMEERE  AREBORKEENEERS  ERERSZHHRER
RS BREBEHTHER  BMEZTBRENHAIMNRAER - SR HEK
HEERR—F  ARMFAGIES 28 -

7K %5 [# /& Charles Jourdangh MR 7E K R ZEHE [ R R IR A AR EE R Al g4 038 o

Charles Jourdan is a leading French label famous for its luxury and colorful footwear.
Established in 1921, the brand recently launched its fashion apparel and accessories
collection using the same passion and innovation. The new line is refreshingly modern,
luxurious, versatile and is sure to be a big hit.

The Group is the licensee of Charles Jourdan full-line apparel and accessories for the
Greater China Region and South East Asia.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

¥ 0OEE Business Review (continued)
HKHEHE (&) Sales of garments (continued)
FaTh 2 & 2 f
Breakdown of outlets
by geographical location
e HE
—EENE ZETLF +/(-)
=A =A P
As of As of +/(-)
March 2008 March 2007 outlets
& Geographical location
BB Hong Kong 41 44 -3
JEFY Macau 8 7 +1
FREE AR HEAE Other areas of the
H [ People’s Republic of China 227 230 -3
aE Taiwan 56 57 -1
B Europe 1 3 -2
ESEEEIES South East Asian countries 6 3 +3
R Total 339 344 -5
AEBRRZLE —MEER - ZHR The Group operates a manufacturing plant in Dongguan which
NEEREB T RAEK A E5R A R BT recorded a loss for the year resulting from increases in staff and fuel
BESIHESE - costs, and government charges.
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Other business

Rental income from investment properties in Hong Kong increased
from the previous year. During the year, the Group disposed of factory
and warehouses in Chai Wan for a consideration of HK$75,311,000,
realising a profit of HK$45,589,000. The security printing business
posted a record turnover and contribution from operations in the year
under review.

Capital Expenditure

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$20,208,000 in
recurring additions and replacement of fixed assets, compared to
HK$20,883,000 for the previous year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group financed its operations by internally generated cashflows
and banking facilities provided by its bankers. The Group continues to
maintain a prudent approach to managing its financial requirements.

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group generated
HK$165,977,000 (2007: HK$121,477,000) of cash from operations.
As at 31 March 2008, the Group had cash and bank deposits net of
overdrafts and short-term bank loans of HK$237,691,000, an increase
from HK$137,283,000 as at 31 March 2007 after payments of
dividends of HK$69,224,000 during the year (2007: HK$69,497,000).
At 31 March 2008, the Group had listed securities which were readily
convertible into cash with a fair value of HK$11,923,000 (2007:

HK$3,977,000).
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HEHXEEMEZZERBENSE - Guy LarocheR I IREZ AR MES ~ BREH 53568 H
MESMREZEA DK T EME -

7N £ B 72 20044F B A Guy Larochef f2 » Guy LarocheE i@+ 90 % i » RIEBREME RS o

Guy Laroche is a renowned French label that has long been recognised by its signature elegant style.
Established in 1956 by Guy Laroche himself, the brand launched its first ready-to-wear collection in
1961. The brand is well known for its form-fitting cuttings, accentuating female bodyline appeal, and thus
it has been popular among famous actresses and celebrities. Guy Laroche designs are for sophisticated,
contemporary and elegant ladies with an appreciation for French style.

The Group acquired Guy Laroche in 2004 and the brand carries a full line of products. The brand has
licensees for various product categories all over the world.

Guy Laroche
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Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

The Group’s net assets as at 31 March 2008 were HK$860,177,000
as compared with HK$747,254,000 as at 31 March 2007. The Group’s
gearing ratio at the year end was 0.05 (2007: 0.15) which was
calculated based on total borrowings of HK$45,348,000 (2007:
HK$105,537,000) and shareholders’ equity of HK$838,565,000 (2007:
HK$727,681,000). The Group’s borrowings are mainly on a floating
rate basis.

The Group also maintains a conservative approach to foreign exchange
exposure management. The Group’s income and expenditure streams
are mainly denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, New Taiwan Dollars,
Pounds Sterling, Euros, Renminbi and Macau Pataca. To manage
currency risks, non Hong Kong Dollar assets are financed primarily by
matching local currency debts as far as possible.

As at 31 March 2008, certain investment properties with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$53,700,000 (2007: HK$57,700,000) were pledged
to banks for obtaining banking facilities of which HK$1,131,000 was
utilised (2007: HK$NIl).

As at 31 March 2008, there were contingent liabilities in respect of
guarantees given to banks by the Company in respect of banking
facilities extended to certain subsidiaries amounting to approximately
HK$114,670,000, as compared with HK$87,524,000 as at 31 March
2007.

Share Option Scheme

On 23 September 2004, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”) which will remain in force until 22
September 2014. Pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme,
the Company may grant options to eligible participants including
directors and employees of the Group to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a maximum of 15,469,879 new shares.

During the year, no share options were granted to directors and
employees of the Group and no options were exercised.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had approximately 2,700 employees.
The Group offers competitive remuneration packages including medical
subsidies and retirement scheme contributions to its employees in
compensation for their contribution. In addition, discretionary bonuses
and share options may also be granted to the eligible employees based
on the Group’s and individuals’ performances.
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Corporate Governance Report

Pursuant to Appendix 23 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of YGM
Trading Limited (the “Company”) presents this Corporate Governance
Report for the year under review.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board firmly believes that corporate governance is essential to
the success of the Company and has adopted various measures to
ensure its strict compliance with relevant regulatory requirements and
a high level of transparency in corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied throughout
the year ended 31 March 2008 with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules,
except that the non-executive directors were not appointed for a
specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meetings in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Securities Dealing Code regarding
director’s securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, upon specific
enquiry by the Company, that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code and its Securities Dealing Code
throughout the year under review.

Board of Directors

The major responsibilities of the Board include formulation of strategic
plans, adoption of corporate strategies, assessment of investment
projects, monitoring and controlling the Group’s operating and financial
performance, and assessing and managing risk to which the Group is
exposed.
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Board of Directors (continued)

The Board comprises seven Executive Directors, being Messrs Chan
Sui Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing To and Fu Sing Yam, Wiliam and Madam Chan Suk
Ling, Shirley, and three Independent Non-executive Directors, being
Messrs Leung Hok Lim, Wong Lam and Lin Keping.

The Company has appointed a sufficient number of Independent Non-
executive Directors with suitable professional qualifications, such as
expertise in accounting and financial management, in accordance with
the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Board held four meetings during the year. The attendance record
of individual Directors is as below:

HE/ BITEFERE
Meetings attended / Held

- Directors
PR I BR Chan Sui Kau 4/4
Bk ok 2= Chan Wing Fui, Peter 4/4

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 4/4

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 4/4

Chan Wing Kee 4/4

Chan Wing To 4/4

Fu Sing Yam, William 4/4

Leung Hok Lim 4/4

Wong Lam 4/ 4

Lin Keping 4/4

S 007/08 3

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company are separated, with a clear division of responsibilities.
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for formulating corporate
strategies and overall business development planning. The Chief
Executive Officer’s duty is to oversee the execution of daily business
activities. The division of responsibilities at the board level is to ensure
a balance of power and authority. The Chief Executive Officer is the
son of the Chairman, details of the relationship between other Directors
are disclosed on pages 29 to 31.
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Audit Committee

The Company formulated written terms of reference for the Audit
Committee in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.
The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Lam and Mr. Lin
Keping. Mr. Leung Hok Lim is the chairman of the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year with an
attendance rate of 100%.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for monitoring the integrity
of the Company’s financial statements, reviewing the Company’s
internal control system and its execution through the review of the
work undertaken by the internal and external auditors, evaluating
financial information and related disclosures; and reviewing connected
transactions.

The Group’s audited financial statements, internal control system and
connected transactions for the year ended 31 March 2008 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter (chairman of the remuneration
committee) and Mr. Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, and three Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Lam
and Mr. Lin Keping. The Company had formulated written terms of
reference for the Remuneration Committee in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and
transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies and in
overseeing remuneration packages of the Directors. It takes into
consideration factors such as salaries and compensation packages
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors. It would also take into account whether the
emoluments offered are appropriate given the duties and performance
of the respective individuals concerned and whether such emoluments
are competitive and sufficiently attractive to retain such individuals.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting during the year
with an attendance rate of 100%.

2007/08 Annual Report ] 6




TEXERBSE
Corporate Governance Report

EERA

EFEeRmARIREZES  REAR
AINEBER  ARFRRARERE
EREAN EFREABURERSAR
TBRRBEXREHE - FRARZESR
BANBEARBKEARAMBETIR
HNEEAEN  BETRERERBEFA
SREREZARTENZBREBEF K
SAMABHRARE - FRARELER
REHRENDRER -

EERMBBRRAMAEZRRE

EXE R ETAVBARZHBE®RE
ZHRE T NERZEVHRREN
EEEQAVHMRRASERBHAHELZ
B  RERBRERE - ARAEH
BRERMBEOTEMABBERE
REstERIZRE - EFHFEMERERE
BRERERAEZETHRE - URIE
HEERE TR 2 H B R AEE -

AARZHMEBEH ST EBTHE
BETHN A FRFEIBNI4E B IZH
Bk & A o

BB 2 &

NEBBETEZ TIEM S 2 HHAD
B & 4258 &7 % 3,710,000 (ZZTZ+
F B ¥4,157,0000T) c HA B
2,385,000 (ZZZ+4F : A 2,112,000
TEXRFREZIFTFARAEE X E
GEMESHETMBEHFA -

B2 007/08 3

Nomination of Directors

The Board has not established a Nomination Committee. Pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association, shareholders of the Company
are entitled to propose candidates. The proposal for the appointment
of directors should be submitted at the annual general meeting for
approval. The intention for proposing director candidates and the
acceptance of nomination by the candidates should be submitted in
writing to the Company no earlier than the date of dispatch of the
notice of annual general meeting and no later than the annual general
meeting. Time limits for nomination and acceptance of nomination
should not be less than 7 days.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements for each financial period with a view to ensuring such
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate accounting
policies are selected and applied consistently; and that judgments and
estimates made are prudent and reasonable.

The reporting responsibilities of KPMG, the Company’s auditors, are
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 33 and 34 of
this Annual Report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

Total auditors’ remuneration in relation to the statutory audit of the
Group amounted to HK$3,710,000 (2007: HK$4,157,000) of which a
sum of HK$2,385,000 (2007: HK$2,112,000) was paid or payable to
the Group’s principal auditor, KPMG.
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Auditors’ Remuneration (continued)

The remuneration paid to the Group’s principal auditor, KPMG, and its
affiliated firms, for services rendered is as follows:

2008 2007
BT BT

HK$ HK$
2,385,000 2,112,000
534,000 524,000
2,919,000 2,636,000

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining an adequate
and sound internal control system and through the Audit Committee
and an external firm of qualified accountants to provide internal audit
services (“Internal Auditors”), conducts reviews on the effectiveness
of these systems at least annually, covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls, and risk
management functions. The process used in reviewing the effectiveness
of these internal control systems includes discussion with management
on risk areas identified by management. The purpose of the Company’s
internal control is to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems so that the Company’s
objectives can be achieved.

Internal Audit Function

Although there was no in-house internal audit set up during the year,
the Company engaged the Internal Auditors to review specific areas
of concern identified by management and the Audit Committee. The
Internal Auditors performed a review of the effectiveness of the system
of internal control of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 so
as to furnish some degree of comfort to the Audit Committee and the
Board on the reliability and integrity of the system and control process.
The results of the internal control review were submitted to the Audit
Committee for consideration. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
results of the internal control review and is satisfied that the existing
system of internal controls is effective and adequate.
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The Directors have pleasure in submitting their Annual Report together
with the audited financial statements of YGM Trading Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries and associates (collectively the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Principal Place of Business

The Company is a company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business at 22 Tai
Yau Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
the provision of management services. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out
in the financial statements on pages 127 to 130.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations of the Group during the financial year are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s sales to its five largest customers and
purchases from its five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30%
of the Group’s turnover and purchases respectively.

Financial Statements

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the
state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 35 to 130.

Transfer to Reserves

Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company, before
dividends, for the year ended 31 March 2008 of HK$170,997,000
(2007: HK$118,121,000) has been transferred to reserves. Other
movements in reserves are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

An interim dividend of HK13 cents per ordinary share (2007: HK13
cents per ordinary share) was paid on 15 January 2008. The Directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK32 cents per
ordinary share (2007: HK32 cents per ordinary share) and a special
dividend of HK30 cents per ordinary share (2007: HK Nil cents per
ordinary share) in respect of the year ended 31 March 2008.
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Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$285,000 (2007: HK$188,000).

Fixed Assets

During the year, the Group disposed of factory and warehouses
previously let out for rental income. Details of these disposals and
other movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in notes 6
and 14 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 29 to the
financial statements.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Chan Sui Kau

Chan Wing Fui, Peter
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
Fu Sing Yam, William
Chan Wing Kee

Chan Wing To

Independent Non-executive Directors

Leung Hok Lim
Wong Lam
Lin Keping

In accordance with Articles 95 and 104 of the Company'’s articles of
association, Messrs Chan Sui Kau, Fu Sing Yam, William, Chan Wing
Kee and Leung Hok Lim shall retire as Directors of the Company by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors a confirmation of their respective
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and the Company considers the
Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

The Independent Non-executive Directors were appointed by the board
of Directors and their remuneration is determined by the board of Directors,
see section headed ‘Compliance with the Code of Best Practice’.

None of the Directors who has offered himself for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has entered into
any service contract with the Company or any other member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
compensation.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares

The Directors and chief executive of the Company who held office at
31 March 2008 had the following interests in the issued shares of the
Company, its subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) at that
date as recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO:

(I) Interests in issued shares

ERER Beneficial interests
B 3 Bk Chan Sui Kau

S Chan Wing Fui, Peter

BR ok 22 Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
AR ME  Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
Bk oK A Chan Wing Kee

BR ok OH Chan Wing To

18 A Fu Sing Yam, William

2 -007/08 3

SREERE50THEBER
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each
B RO EQiY £ AR R Hitbhg s
Personal Family Corporate Other
interests® interests interests interests
4,929,272 214,368 3,840,820 (ii)
324,068 3,820,420 — (i), (iif) & (iv)
2,072,072 - 7,291,144 (i), (iif) & (iv)
3,613,544 16,000 — (i), (iif) & (iv)
3,692,776 819,404 — (i), (iii), (iv) & (v)
4,144,736 - - (i), (iif), (iv) & (v)
900,462 - - (ii)
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares (continued)

(I) Interests in issued shares (continued)

(i)  The shares are registered under the names of the Directors
and chief executive who are the beneficial owners.

(i) 29,601,700 shares of the Company were held by Chan
Family Investment Corporation Limited (which is owned by
Messrs Chan Sui Kau, Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing
Kee, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel, Chan Wing To and Fu Sing
Yam, William, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and other
members of the Chan family) and its subsidiaries.

(i) 24,595,908 shares of the Company were held by Canfield
Holdings Limited, which is indirectly owned by Messrs Chan
Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
and Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley and other
members of the Chan family.

(iv) 2,917,480 shares of the Company were held by Hearty
Development Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs
Chan Wing Fui, Peter, Chan Wing Kee, Chan Wing Sun,
Samuel and Chan Wing To, Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley
and other members of the Chan family.

(v) 1,597,000 shares of the Company were held by Super Team
International Limited which is indirectly owned by Messrs
Chan Wing Kee and Chan Wing To and other members of
the Chan family.

(ll) Interests in underlying shares

The Directors and chief executive of the Company have been
granted options under the Company’s share option scheme,
details of which are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme”
below.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years
of age has any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or
other associated corporations, as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on 23
September 2004 whereby the Directors of the Company are authorised,
at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including directors
of any company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for
shares in the Company. The purpose of the scheme is to provide an
opportunity for employees of the Group to acquire an equity
participation in the Company and to encourage them to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The share option
scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10 years ending on 22
September 2014, after which no further options will be granted.

The exercise price of options is the highest of the nominal value of the
shares, the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant and the average closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant.

The options vest 30 days from the date of grant and are then exercisable
within a period of 10 years from the date of grant.

The total number of shares available for issue under the share option
scheme as at 31 March 2008 was 15,469,879 shares (including options
for 11,791,000 shares that have been granted but have not yet lapsed
or been exercised) which represented 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 31 March 2004. In respect of the maximum
entitlement of each participant under the scheme, the number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the Company’s
ordinary shares in issue.

At 31 March 2008, the Directors and employees of the Company had
the following interests in the options to subscribe for shares in the
Company (market value per share at 31 March 2008 was HK$5.13)
granted for a nominal charge on acceptance of the offer of grant of an
option under the Share Option Scheme of the Company. The options
are unlisted. Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share of HK$0.50 each of the Company.
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iR E | Share Option Scheme (continued)
4 R E3 S BRER
HRATED MM ERTEN BRETT FERH
BREHE BREZE BREHE BEFEH TESEE SROEE SRIE
No. of
options No. of No. of
outstanding options options Market value
at the lapsed  outstanding Period during Exercise  per share at
beginning of during at the which optionsare ~ price per  date of grant
the year the year yearend  Date granted exercisable share  of options
(Bx) (Bm)*
(HK$) (HKS$)*
Ex Directors
B 5 Bk Chan Sui Kau 1,000,000 - 1,000,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
BxER Chan Wing Fui, Peter 1,500,000 - 1,500,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
HE B and his spouse to 15/02/2015
B ok 4 Chan Wing Sun, Samuel 1,200,000 - 1,200,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
R RE Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 1,500,000 - 1,500,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
R Chan Wing Kee 800,000 - 800,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
Bk Chan Wing To 500,000 - 500,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
[EAE Fu Sing Yam, William 1,200,000 - 1,200,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
B Leung Hok Lim 100,000 - 100,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
T3 Wong Lam 25,000 - 25,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
M Lin Keping 25,000 - 25,000 17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
7,850,000 - 7,850,000
E& Employees 4,133,000 (192,000) 3,941,000  17/01/2005 16/02/2005 12.10 12.00
to 15/02/2015
@it Total 11,983,000 (192,000) 11,791,000
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Share Option Scheme (continued)

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names
of the Directors who are also the beneficial owners.

* being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the options
were granted.

Information on the accounting policy for share options granted and
the weighted average value per option is provided in note 1(q)(ii) and
note 27 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other
body corporate.

Substantial Shareholder

As at 31 March 2008, the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO showed that, other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of the directors, no other interests
required to be recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the
SFO have been notified to the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, the Directors are not aware of any person
who was, directly or indirectly, interested or had a short position in the
shares or underlying shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO or, was directly or indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of the issued share capital carrying rights to
vote in all circumstances at general meeting of the Company or any
options in respect of such capital as at 31 March 2008.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this annual report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.



HEXZRESEZANNE
=

WiIE EMARBE T HAS RIS EER
%%1%%%%&%%&%%EW 1B
VBTEEAR RFHEEXRSH

) RE-—BERAEXEBEREFTET

(i) HEFEEMBRR KB HEER
ZIER  BARRBLIRRRAER
FEBZIERET R

(i) HEESEIZOWMEER -

WEZEHE  BETBERG TEL

FoESBABILE=HRE(RE
&) 2 IGEFHET -

BRIALEFRALESN - RRRBEEFHER
ARBHEEAMBRRMAETL - A
AEBEERHFRAEMERDER X

MERGNTIHEEAMNS -
RTERRH G

AR M AEBR -_ZEZNF=Z/A=+
—BZRTERREMERFBEHRE
f%#&%ﬁﬂ‘ﬁ%%lﬁ °

AFEHE

AEBERBELEVBRFENEERE
ERBEHMEBHNAFHRFI3NH -

Y %
EEEFHZHFRBRAAEESBEBEE
EYSEIEL: E = = R NI E
KM FEFE 1418 -

EEEmE
Report of the Directors

Connected Transactions and Directors’
Interests in Contracts

Details of the connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are set out in note 33 to the financial statements. In the opinion
of the Independent Non-executive Directors, these transactions were:

(i)  conducted in the ordinary and usual course of business;

(i)  either on normal commercial terms or, where there is no available
comparison, on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the
independent shareholders of the Company are concerned; and

(i)  either in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing
such transactions or, where there are no such agreements, on
terms no less favourable than those available to or from (as
appropriate) independent third parties.

Apart from the foregoing, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Company and
the Group as at 31 March 2008 are set out in note 25 to the financial
statements.

Five Year Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 131 of the Annual
Report.

Properties

Details of these disposals and other particulars of the major properties
and property interests of the Group are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.
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Retirement Schemes

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate a
defined contribution retirement scheme (“the Scheme”) for all qualified
employees. The assets of the Scheme are held separately under a
provident fund managed by an independent trustee. Pursuant to the
rules of the Scheme, the employer is required to make contributions
to the Scheme calculated at 5% of the employees’ basic salaries on a
monthly basis, whereas the employees’ contributions are optional and,
at their own discretion. Where employees leave the Scheme prior to
vesting fully in accordance with the rules of the Scheme, the forfeited
employer’s contributions shall be used to reduce the future
contributions of the employer or shall be refunded to the employer on
request.

Following the introduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
on 1 December 2000 employer contributions are now made to the
MPF. The MPF scheme is operated under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees governed by the
Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement scheme administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

The employees are entitled to 100% of the employer’s contributions
made prior to the introduction of the MPF and the accrued interest
after 10 complete years of service, or at an increasing scale of between
30% to 90% after completion of 3 to 9 years’ service of the Scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China
(“the PRC”) and France are members of the state-sponsored retirement
schemes organised by the governments of the PRC and France,
respectively. The subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of payroll to the retirement scheme to fund the benefits.
The only obligation of the subsidiaries with respect to the retirement
schemes is the required contributions under the retirement schemes.

A subsidiary established in Taiwan participates in a defined benefit
retirement plan established in accordance with the local labour
standards law. Contributions to the plan are based upon 2% of wages
and salaries paid.
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Compliance with the Code of Best Practice

The Company has complied throughout the year with the Code of
Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except
that the non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed
for a specific term but are subject to rotation in annual general meetings
pursuant to Articles 95 and 104 of the Company’s articles of
association.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three Independent Non-executive
Directors and reports to the Board of Directors. The audit committee
meets with the Group’s senior management and external auditors
regularly to review the effectiveness of the internal control systems
and the Annual Report of the Group.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the Board

Leung Wing Fat
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 16 July 2008
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Directors

Chan Sui Kau GBM, GBS, JP

Aged 83. Dr. Chan is the founder of our Group. He established
Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in 1949 and is the Executive Chairman of
the Group as well as Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd.. Dr. Chan used to
serve as a member of the 8th & 9th term of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Committee until he reached the retirement age.
Having been a Justices of the Peace since 1983, Dr. Chan was
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star in 2002 and six years later in 2008 Dr
Chan was awarded the Grand Bauhinia Medal. Dr. Chan received a
Doctoral Degree of Business Administration from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2001; then in 2007 an Honorary Doctoral
Degree of Social Sciences from City University of Hong Kong and in
the same year, an Honorary University Fellowship from University of
Hong Kong. Dr. Chan is the former Chairman of Clothing Industry
Training Authority (1986); former Chairman of Textile Council of Hong
Kong (1988-1994) and presently its Honorary Chairman; former
President of Federation of Hong Kong Garment Manufacturers (1977-
1988) and currently its Life Honorary President; Honorary President of
Hong Kong Woollen & Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association
since 1980 and former member of Textile Advisory Board of Hong
Kong (1971-1989) as well as the Hong Kong Labour Advisory Board
(1985-1995).

Chan Wing Fui, Peter MA

Aged 62. Received a Master’s degree in Administrative Science from
Yale University, USA in 1969 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in
the same year. Appointed Director in 1971, Managing Director in 1980
and Vice Chairman of Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. and YGM Trading
Ltd. in 1987. Mr. Chan has been actively involved in garment
manufacturing and marketing in the Far East and the USA for over 30
years. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau and the brother of Mr. Chan
Wing Sun, Samuel and Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.
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Directors and Senior Executives Profiles

Chan Wing Sun, Samuel FCA

Aged 60. Received a Bachelor’s degree from the University of
Manchester, the United Kingdom in 1970 and qualified as a Chartered
Accountant in 1973. Company Secretary of Yangtzekiang Garment
Ltd. from 1974 to 1988 and Director since 1977. He was Managing
Director of the Company from 1987 to 2006 and appointed Chief
Executive Officer in July 2006. Mr. Chan has been Chairman of Hang
Ten Group Holdings Ltd. from 2003. He is the son of Dr. Chan Sui Kau
and the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Madam Chan Suk
Ling, Shirley.

Chan Suk Ling, Shirley

Madam Chan has been Managing Director of YGM Trading Ltd. since
2006. She joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in 1973 and was
appointed Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in 1983. Madam
Chan was Deputy Managing Director of YGM Trading Ltd. from 1987.
She has extensive experience of management in the garment retail
and wholesale business. Madam Chan is a Member of the Textiles
Advisory Board of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a Member
of the Hong Kong-France Business Partnership Committee of the Hong
Kong Trade Development Council, a Member of the Board of Directors
of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Member of Quality Tourism Services
Committee of the Hong Kong Tourism Board, a Member of Board of
Directors of Ocean Park Corporation, Vice Chairman of the Hong Kong
Retail Management Association, a Member of the Executive Committee
of the Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, Chairman
of the Hong Kong Brand Development Council, Director of Hong Kong
Design Centre, a member of DesignSmart Initiative Assessment Panel,
a Committee Member of the Tianjin Municipal Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and Vice President of
Guangdong Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment. She
received a Bachelor’s degree from Trent University, the United Kingdom
in 1973. Madam Chan, aged 57, is the daughter of Dr. Chan Sui Kau
and the sister of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter and Mr. Chan Wing Sun,
Samuel.

Fu Sing Yam, William

Age 46. Received a Bachelor’s degree from the University of Western
Ontario, Canada in 1984. Joined the Company in 1985. Appointed
Director of the Company in 1995 and Deputy Managing Director of
the Company in 2006. He has extensive experience in fashion retailing,
wholesaling, marketing and merchandising. Mr. Fu is a Committee
Member of the Heilongjiang Provincial Committee of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference.

2007/08 Annual Report 30
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Chan Wing Kee GBS, OBE, JP

Aged 61. Received a Bachelor’s degree in Industrial Engineering in
1970 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in 1970 as Production
Manager and later became Sales Manager. Mr. Chan was appointed
Director in 1977 and Managing Director of Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd.
in 1987. He is a Director of the Company. He is also independent non-
executive director of Times Limited, China Travel International
Investment Hong Kong Limited and China Construction Bank (Asia)
Corporation Limited. Mr. Chan has participated in many textile
negotiations with the USA and Europe for Hong Kong and Macau. He
is a Standing Committee Member of The 10th and 11th of The Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference; Deputy of the 8th and 9th
National People’s Congress of China, Member of Commission on
Strategic Development of Hong Kong Special Administrative Region;
Ex-member of Economic Council of Macau Special Administrative
Region; Ex-member of the Textile Advisory Board; Ex-Committee
Member of the Preparatory Committee for Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region and Ex-Advisor of Hong Kong Affairs. He is the
brother of Mr. Chan Wing To.

Chan Wing To PhD

Aged 57. Joined YGM Singapore in 1978. Appointed Director of
Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in 1983 and the Company in 1987. He is
the brother of Mr. Chan Wing Kee.

Leung Hok Lim, FCPA(Aust.), CPA(Macau), FCPA(Practising)

Aged 73. An Independent Non-executive Director of the Company, is
the founding and senior partner of PKF, Accountants & Business
Advisers. Mr. Leung obtained his fellowship with Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in 1973. He is a non-executive director
of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre Limited and a
number of listed companies.

Wong Lam OBE, JP

Aged 89. Appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in 1995. Mr. Wong is a former member of the Legislative
Council, a former Standing Committee Member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Dongguan and a Director of Lung
Cheong International Holdings Ltd..

Lin Keping

Aged 69. Appointed an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company in 2004. Mr. Lin is an engineer, graduated from Beijing
University of Post and Telecommunications in 1963. He is a Member
of the 8th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference and an executive member of the 8th All-China
Federation of Industry and Commerce. He has served in postal and
telecommunication research institutes, the Ministry of Posts and
Telecommunications, and other organisations for many years and was
an executive vice president of China Minsheng Bank Corp Ltd.
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Senior Executives

Kenneth Hung

Aged 41. Joined the Group in 1992. Director of Michel René Enterprises
Ltd. and Managing Director of Hang Ten Group Holdings Ltd.. Mr.
Hung graduated from the University of Minnesota in the USA and has
extensive experience in the apparel retailing industry.

Cheng Sai Man, Simon

Aged 59. Received a Bachelor’s degree from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1974 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in the
same year. Mr. Cheng has been General Manager of YGM Clothing
Ltd. since 1988. He has extensive manufacturing and commercial
experience in China.

Chan Andrew

Aged 30. Joined the Group in 2002. A director of YGM Marketing
Ltd.. Mr. Chan attended Skidmore College in New York majoring in
marketing and received a Bachelor’s degree in Economics from the
University of Hartford in Connecticut. He has extensive experience in
the fashion retailing industry in the Greater China Region and South
East Asian markets. He is currently responsible for overall management
and strategic development for Charles Jourdan, Guy Laroche and
Michel René. In addition, Mr. Chan assists the Managing Director in
the corporate development of the Group. He is the grandson of Dr.
Chan Sui Kau, the son of Mr. Chan Wing Fui, Peter, the nephew of Mr.
Chan Wing Sun, Samuel and Madam Chan Suk Ling, Shirley.

Cheung Kwok Sum, Sam

Aged 47. Received a Bachelor’s degree from University of Hong Kong
in 1983 and joined Yangtzekiang Garment Ltd. in the same year. Mr.
Cheung is the EDP Manager of the Group.

Leung Wing Fat FCCA, FCPA

Aged 48. Joined the Group as Financial Controller in 1996 and
appointed as Company Secretary of the Company in 1998. Mr. Leung
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. He is responsible for accounting and
company secretarial matters.

Ngai Kwai Yung FCPA (Aust.), CPA, MBA

Aged 50. Appointed Managing Director of Hong Kong Security Printing
Ltd. in 1998. Holds a Bachelor’s degree of Commerce and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration. Mr. Ngai is a fellow member of
CPA Australia and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
YGM Trading Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of YGM Trading
Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages 35 to 130 which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2008,
the consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the
year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 March 2008 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building

10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

16 July 2008
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Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

(A & # 51| 75~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
B Z=FZT/)NF = H=+1—H I ¥ E For the year ended 31 March 2008

B
HERA
E
HipA

H i a ¥ 58
2 AR
THE A
Hib =& M

mERA
BEYFAEK S
HEREME RS

BE R

FEIEE 2 DA E N RUET 18
BR B AT R

FSH

IRE BT
B

ARRIEEIR
DB RS

REEER

FEERGEZENEAT
REHERRRE

FABEE KT HEE

REEHE BREZED K
ESHIlJESN

REEHE BREZE DK
REAR R

BRER
E-2ZN

e

FA3EZF10B Wit BAHBHEKZ

—#8 -

B9 2007/08 F &

Turnover
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other net income
Distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses

Profit from operations

Valuation gain on investment properties
Gain on disposal of investment properties
Finance costs

Share of profits less losses of associates

Profit before taxation
Income tax

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company
Minority interests

Profit for the year

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year:

Interim dividend declared during the year

Special dividend proposed after the
balance sheet date

Final dividend proposed after the
balance sheet date

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

10 & 29
29

11

12(a)

12(b)

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
1,110,115 1,022,818
(438,661) (390,827)
671,454 631,991
12,000 12,652
10,495 1,601
(409,445) (385,848)
(174,221) (153,600)
(7,768) (5,225)
102,515 101,571
13,400 18,600
45,589 =
(4,729) (6,992)
34,099 21,252
190,874 134,431
(14,630) (14,387)
176,244 120,044
170,997 118,121
5,247 1,923
176,244 120,044
19,998 19,998
46,150 =
49,226 49,226
115,374 69,224
$1.11 $0.77
N/A N/A

The notes on pages 43 to 130 form part of these financial statements.
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RITERREX
AERFE PRS0

hRBEEFE

REERRBAEE

FRBEE

RITER
EENIREE

BEFE

Non-current assets

Fixed assets

— Investment properties

— Other property, plant
and equipment

— Interest in leasehold land
held for own use under
operating lease

Intangible assets
Lease premium
Interest in associates
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Trading securities
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Current tax recoverable

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Bank loans and overdrafts
Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less
current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Bank loans
Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

BaE
Note

14(a)

15
16
18
19
28(b)

20
21
22
23
28(a)

24
25
28(a)

25
28(b)

HFERERRR

Consolidated Balance Sheet

(LA 8 ¥ 31| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZFEZENF=H=+—H At 31 March 2008

$°000

11,923
137,709
138,686
276,633

3,406

568,357

188,640
38,942
9,892

237,474

6,406
13,657

2008
$000

66,300

129,017

5,571

200,888
108,489
11,696
128,150
35,128
65,006

549,357

330,883

880,240

20,063

860,177

2007

$°000

3,977
180,865
138,839
193,782

517,463

179,415
56,499
10,593

246,507

49,038
13,989
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$°000

81,900

135,992

5,216

223,108
109,344
9,012
96,864
42,893
57,204

539,325

270,956

810,281

63,027

747,254
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GEREAMR
Consolidated Balance Sheet
(A & # 31| 75~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZ=ZZFZFNF=HA=+—H At 31 March 2008
BiEE 2008 2007
Note $°000 $°000 $’000 $’000
B R #E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 29(a)
[N Share capital 76,916 76,916
it Reserves 761,649 650,765
RATFRE Total equity attributable to
iR shareholders
of the Company 838,565 727,681
DE B RER Minority interests 21,612 19,573
XA TOTAL EQUITY 860,177 747,254
EETgR_TEENFEATAAAZET Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
FFAIEE M o 16 July 2008.
R &% 2R ) Chan Sui Kau
)
) BEE Directors
R Kk %2 ) Chan Wing Sun, Samuel
)
E43BE ZF130BE 2 Mt BAUERKZ The notes on pages 43 to 130 form part of these financial statements.
— &1 o
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AR &1

EEEN
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EEAE
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Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investments in subsidiaries
Interest in associates

Other financial assets

Current assets

Trading securities

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Current tax recoverable

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Current tax payable

Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liability

Deferred tax liability

NET ASSETS

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

BaE
Note

14(b)
17
18
19

20

22

23
28(a)

24
28(a)

28(b)

29(b)

$°000

BEERARR=R

Balance Sheet

(LA 8 ¥ 31| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZZFEZENF=H=+—H At 31 March 2008

2008
$000

531
562,849
17,315
33,834

614,529

5,358
1,537
89,705
108

96,708

7,640

7,640

89,068

703,597

40
703,557

76,916
626,641

703,557

2007
$°000 $°000

758
503,339
17,315
33,954

555,366
3,977

2,012
83,393

89,382

11,5683
272

11,855

77,527

632,893

65
632,828

76,916
555,912

632,828

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

A B o 16 July 2008.
R H 2R ) Chan Sui Kau )

) )

) EF ) Directors
BR 7k & ) Chan Wing Sun, Samuel )

) )

FA3EZF10B Wit BAHBEREZZ

—#8 -

The notes on pages 43 to 130 form part of these financial statements.
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REBR during the year attributable to: 11
—AAREmRE — Equity shareholders of the

Company (69,224) (69,497)
—DEIR RS - Minority interests 29 (4,761) (986)

(73,985) (70,483)

EXRGMEEZ Movements in equity arising
R from capital transactions:
BB Shares repurchased 29
—HE — par value - (426)
—BfhaE - premium paid - (5,022)

- (5,448)

R=ZA=+—Hz#EZME Total equity at 31 March 860,177 747,254

FA3EZF10B Wit BAHBHEKZ

— &1 e

The notes on pages 43 to 130 form part of these financial statements.

freEDE
vk = n:
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(A & # 51| 75~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
B Z=FZT/)NF = H=+1—H I ¥ E For the year ended 31 March 2008
i 2008 2007
Note $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
RUA— Bz ESEE Total equity at 1 April 747,254 700,650
BEEREZERZ Net income/(expense)
W (B) recognised directly
R in equity
FTE G B A ] Exchange differences on
W mREEL translation of financial
MEH =5 statements of subsidiaries
based outside Hong Kong 29 2,136
HEBREAREER Exchange reserve realised
ZINE on disposal of associate 29 =
FE(RES & N R INE R Share of exchange reserve
of associates 29 (334) Slolg)
BEEREZRRAZAEE Net income/(expense) for the
Wi (%) B8 year recognised directly
in equity 10,664 2,491
REERRF Net profit for the year 29 176,244 120,044
TEFEERAZ W= Total recognised income and
kBB expense for the year 122,535
Z)iSk Attributable to:
— NA AR R — Equity shareholders of the
Company 180,108 120,797
—DERR s ~ Minority interests 6,800 1,738
186,908 122,535
KEETIRSHE S Dividends declared or approved

B9 2007/08 F &



FEHaRER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(LA 8 ¥ 31| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
B2 T T/ F=H=+1—HIFE Forthe year ended 31 March 2008

B5E 2008 2007
Note $°000 $°000 $’000 $’000

BEER Operating activities
BRI A& A Profit before taxation 190,874 134,431
FHEIFR : Adjustments for:
wEMEME Valuation gain on
Weas investment properties (13,400) (18,600)
e Depreciation 28,284 27,066
FHIEE A Amortisation of land lease
T E premium for property
ERss held for own use 147 138
B EESE Amortisation of intangible
assets 5(c) 780 780
BE AN Finance costs 5(a) 4,729 6,992
EmEHZRERA Dividend income from
listed securities 4 (147) (406)
|RITHBHA Bank interest income 4 (4,575) (5,587)
EAthF S A Other interest income 4 (1,919) (1,910)
FE(LESE & N 7] Share of profits less losses
i AR T 18 of associates (34,099) (21,252)
HE T RIEF Net gain on disposal of
BEEZ W5 land and building 4 - (747)
HEEMEEEE Net loss on disposal of
EEZ BRI other fixed assets 4 2,135 223
HEBVEEEEY Net gain on disposal of
st intangible assets 4 (267) -
HEREYZE Gain on disposal of
& investment properties 6 (45,589) -
BERFELEZEEH Net realised and unrealised
RAREIE (), (gain)/loss on trading
E518 558 securities 4 (4,208) 1,138
B i 2 Foreign exchange gain (9,302 (3,836)
EEESSEEA Operating profit before
R F changes in working capital 113,443 118,430
BERD, (&) Decrease/(increase) in
inventories 43,156 (4,201)

FEUERSR - PRI - Decrease/(increase) in

e RIEMAK debtors, bills receivable,
L (E) deposits and prepayments 3,157 (4,686)
FEURRE A ISR (Increase)/decrease in
(%), E A amounts due from related
companies (3,004) 1,119
FERER R R FEET Increase in creditors and
& g0 accrued charges 16,401 2,789
FERTZ=AE CRid) /10 (Decrease)/increase in bills
payable (5,350) 5,874
FEfS B A R (Decrease)/increase in
(B2 /1 mn amounts due to related

companies (1,826) 2,152
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mRERTRER

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
(A & # 31| 75~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B Z =TT/ =H=+1—HI¥E Forthe year ended 31 March 2008

REXBEL RS

EAREZAE
BENEEFER
ENEBAIMEEZ IR

REEDEEZ
REFH

REES
BABRTEEMNK

BOMBEEMGSHIA
HEEE & EMSHA
HERBEMEMEHRA
FER

BABERZ 2N
HE B EEMSHR
HEBBFESFMEHRRA
S R EIR R
EHERTTHE

EUEMBHE
B ETEFRE

REEHEEZ
REFE

AP 2007/08 F

Cash generated from
operations

Tax paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid
Tax paid outside Hong Kong

Net cash generated from
operating activities

Investing activities

Payment for the purchase of
fixed assets

Proceeds from redemption
of financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of
fixed assets

Net proceeds from disposal
of investment properties

Payment for the purchase of
trading securities

Proceeds from disposal of
intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of
trading securities

Dividends received from
an associate

Bank interest received

Other interest received

Dividends received from
listed securities

Net cash generated from
investing activities

BaE
Note

2008
$000  $000

165,977

(13,822)

(6,742)

145,413

(20,208)

2,508
74,589
(33,156)
342
29,418
10,111

4,575
1,919

147

70,245

2007

$'000

121,477

(14,538)

(5,738)

(20,883)

7,628

1,946

2,435

10,060
5,687
1,910

406

$'000

101,201

8,989
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RERALE
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REEEEY
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Financing activities

BRERERER
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(LA 8 ¥ 31| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE=-TZT)N\F=H=+—H I FJF Forthe year ended 31 March 2008

B5E 2008 2007
Note $°000 $°000 $’000 $’000

Payment for repurchase

of shares

29(c)(ii) - (5,448)

Proceeds from new bank

loans

Repayment of bank loans
Other borrowing costs paid 5(a)

16,650
(93,537)
(4,729)

49,831
(39,147)
(6,992)

Dividends paid to equity

shareholders of the

Company

i (69,224) (69,497)

Dividends paid to minority

interests

29 (4,761) (986)

Net cash used in financing

activities

(155,601)

(72,239)

Net increase in cash and

cash equivalents

60,057 37,951

Cash and cash equivalents

at 1 April

190,391 152,550

Effect of foreign exchange

rates changes

6,096 (110)

Cash and cash equivalents

at 31 March

23 256,544 190,391

The notes on pages 43 to 130 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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1 LA & 1 51| R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Significant accounting policies

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company.
Note 2 provides information on the changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected
in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2008 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest
in associates.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except as
set out in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19 A B B 51| )R Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material
adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 35.

Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(c) Subsidiaries and minority interests (continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of
subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned by
the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having
a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that
meets the definition of a financial liability. Minority interests
are presented in the consolidated balance sheet within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Minority interests in the results
of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
profit and loss account as an allocation of the total profit or
loss for the year between minority interests and the equity

shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the minority’s
interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess, and any
further losses applicable to the minority, are charged against
the Group’s interest except to the extent that the minority
has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary subsequently
reports profits, the Group’s interest is allocated all such profits
until the minority’s share of losses previously absorbed by

the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note

1(K)-

(d) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company
has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial and

operating policy decisions.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d) Associates (continued)

(e)

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity method
and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets. The consolidated profit and loss
account includes the Group’s share of the post-acquisition,
post-tax results of the associates for the year, including any
impairment of goodwiill relating to the interests in associates
recognised for the year (see notes 1(e) and 1(k)).

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
For this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate is the
carrying amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests that in
substance form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associate, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in the consolidated profit and loss account.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(Kk)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate over the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 1(k)). In respect
of associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e) Goodwill (continued)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an
investment in an associate is recognised immediately in the

consolidated profit and loss account.

On disposal of a cash generating unit or an associate during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is
included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(f)  Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in
debt and equity securities, other than investments in

subsidiaries and associates are as follows:

MBHEME
Notes to the Financial Statements
(B ZEFT1E5N - 15 L E B 51 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
1 FEFSITEE @
(e)
(f)
a 7,
3
F Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at
cost, which is their transaction price unless fair value can be
7 more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose
variables include only data from observable markets. Cost
7 includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently
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accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current
assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognised in
the profit and loss account as incurred. At each balance sheet
date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in consolidated profit and loss account.
The net gain or loss recognised in the consolidated profit and
loss account does not include any dividends or interest earned
on these investments as these are recognised in accordance

with the policies set out in note 1(t)(iv).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company
have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are
classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity
securities are stated in the balance sheet at amortised cost

less impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

Investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured are recognised in the balance sheet at

cost less impairment losses (see note 1(k)).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group and/or the Company commits to purchase/sell the

investments or they expire.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(9)

(h)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(j)) to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated in the balance sheet at fair
value. Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or
from the retirement or disposal of an investment property is
recognised in the profit and loss account. Rental income
from investment properties is accounted for as described in
note 1(t)(ii).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(j)), and the same accounting policies are applied to
that interest as are applied to other investment properties
leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 1().

Other property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are
stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(k)):

— land held under operating leases and buildings thereon,
where the fair values of the leasehold interest in the
land and buildings cannot be measured separately at
the inception of the lease and the building is not clearly
held under an operating lease (see note 1()));

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building could
be measured separately from the fair value of the
leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see note
1(j)); and

—  other items of plant and equipment.
Where land and buildings are transferred from investment

properties, “cost” represents the fair value at the date of
change in use of the properties.
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14 L4 7 B 51| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

In preparing these financial statements, the Group has relied
upon the provisions set out in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16,
“Property, plant and equipment” issued by the HKICPA, with
the effect that fair value of investment property transferred
to land and buildings in prior years has been treated as the
deemed cost of those land and buildings at the date of
transfer. Such previously revalued land and buildings have
not been revalued to fair value at the balance sheet date
and are stated at deemed cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses and will not be revalued

in future years.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in the profit

and loss account on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their

estimated useful lives as follows:

over the remaining term of the lease.

—  Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and
their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years

after the date of completion.

—  Plant and machinery over 10 years.

—  Leasehold improvements, motor vehicles, furniture and

equipment between 2 to 10 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset

and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leasehold land is depreciated on a straight-line basis
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note 1(k)). Expenditure on internally generated brands
is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

(i) Licences

Licences acquired by the Group with a finite estimated
useful economic life are stated in the balance sheet at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses (see note 1(K)).

Amortisation of licences is charged to the profit and
loss account on a straight-line basis over the period to
which the licence relates.

(i) Lease premiums

Lease premiums paid by the Group with an indefinite
estimated useful economic life are stated in the balance
sheet at cost less accumulated impairment losses (see
note 1(k)).

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives
are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful
life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If
they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the
date of change and in accordance with the policy for
amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

0

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and
is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal
form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the Group are classified as operating leases, with the
following exceptions:

property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 1(g)); and

land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous
lessee.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

() Leased assets (continued)

(i

)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such assets are
included in fixed assets. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely
the Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of
the asset. Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in
note 1(k).

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to the profit and loss account in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered by
the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in the profit and loss account
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to the profit and
loss account in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of
the lease term except where the property is classified
as an investment property (see note 1(g)).
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets

@

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities (other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates: see note
1(k)(ii)) and other current and non-current receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

—  significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity instrument below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, an impairment loss is
determined and recognised as follows:

—  For unquoted equity securities and current
receivables that are carried at cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is material.
Impairment losses for equity securities are not
reversed.
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For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where financial
assets carried at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through the profit and
loss account. A reversal of an impairment loss shall
not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(0

Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included within trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in the profit
and loss account.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except in the case
of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

—  pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease;

- intangible assets;

— investments in subsidiaries and associates; and

- goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or
not there is any indication of impairment.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its net selling price and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in the profit and
loss account whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the profit and loss account
in the year in which the reversals are recognised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

U

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
“Interim financial reporting”, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end
of the financial year (see notes 1(k)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities
and unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not
reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even
if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognised
had the impairment been assessed only at the end of
the financial year to which the interim period relates.

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the FIFO formula and comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(m) Trade and other receivables

(n)

(o)

(p)

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less allowance
for impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note
1(k)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less impairment
losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note 1(k)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount
initially recognised and redemption value being recognised
in the profit and loss account over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with note 1(s)(i), trade and other payables are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are also included as
a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose
of the consolidated cash flow statement.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(q) Employee benefits

@

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over
the vesting period, taking into account the probability
that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit and loss account for the
year of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either the option
is exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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(q) Employee benefits (continued)
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(r)

(i) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in the profit
and loss account, except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised directly in equity, in which case they are recognised
in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax
assets also arise from unused tax losses.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities
and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or
in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax
loss or credit can be utilised.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
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Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from
goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of
a business combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case
of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(r) Income tax (continued)

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realise the current tax
assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities

(0

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments
to reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the
“holder”) for a loss the holder incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in the profit and
loss account on initial recognition of any deferred
income.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(0

(i)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in the profit and loss
account over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are
recognised in accordance with note 1(s)(iii) if and when
(i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii)
the amount of that claim on the Group is expected to
exceed the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee; i.e. the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities acquired in business combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value,
provided the fair value can be reliably measured. After
their initial recognition at fair value, such contingent
liabilities are recognised at the higher of the amount
initially recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would be
determined in accordance with note 1(s)(iii). Contingent
liabilities acquired in a business combination that cannot
be reliably fair valued are disclosed in accordance with
note 1(s)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has
a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a
past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

(i)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

(t) Revenue recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the profit and
loss account as follows:

(0

(i

Sale of goods

Revenue arising from the sale of garments and printing
products is recognised when goods are delivered to
the customer which is taken to be the point in time
when the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the profit and loss account in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in the profit and loss account as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are earned.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(t) Revenue recognition (continued)

)

Royalty income

Royalty income is recognised in accordance with the
substance of the relevant agreements.

Dividends

—  Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

— Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

— Interest income from dated debt securities
intended to be held to maturity is recognised as it
accrues, as adjusted by the amortisation of the
premium or discount on acquisition, so as to
achieve a constant rate of return over the period
from the date of purchase to the date of maturity.

— Interest income from bank deposits is recognised
as it accrues using the effective interest method.

(u) Translation of foreign currencies

(0

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s subsidiaries are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in the
Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.
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1 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(u) Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

(i

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in the profit
and loss account.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity. Goodwill arising on consolidation
of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005
is translated at the foreign exchange rate that applied
at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is included
in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

(v) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the profit or loss account
in the period in which they are incurred.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Related parties

x)

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if:

(i)

(i)

(V)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly, through
one or more intermediaries to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making
financial and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture
in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred
toin (i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is
for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that
is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a
particular economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from
those of other segments.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

(x) Segment reporting (continued)

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment
information as the primary reporting format and geographical
segment information as the secondary reporting format for
the purposes of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. For example, segment assets may include
inventories, trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and
liabilities are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such intra-
group balances and transactions are between Group entities
within a single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on
similar terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during
the period to acquire segment assets (both tangible and
intangible) that are expected to be used for more than one
period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and corporate
assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings, tax balances,
corporate and financing expenses.
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Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised HKFRSs
and Interpretations that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company.

There have been no significant changes to the accounting policies
applied in these financial statements for the years presented as a
result of these developments. However, as a result of the adoption
of HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments: Disclosures” and the
amendment to HKAS 1, “Presentation of financial statements:
Capital disclosures”, there have been some additional disclosures
provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, the financial statements
include expanded disclosure about the significance of the Group’s
financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising
from those instruments, compared with the information previously
required to be disclosed by HKAS 32, “Financial instruments:
Disclosure and presentation”. These disclosures are provided
throughout these financial statements, in particular in note 30.

The amendment to HKAS 1 introduces additional disclosure
requirements to provide information about the level of capital and
the Group’s and the Company’s objectives, policies and processes
for managing capital. These new disclosures are set out in note
29(f).
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Sales of garments
Royalty and related income

Printing and related services

Gross rentals from investment properties

Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Both HKFRS 7 and the amendment to HKAS 1 do not have any
material impact on the classification, recognition and
measurement of the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 36).

Turnover

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding
and the provision of management services. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries and associates are set out on pages 127 to
130 to the financial statements.

Turnover represents the aggregate of net invoiced value of sales
to and royalty and rental income from external customers and
income from printing and related services. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in turnover during the
year is as follows:

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
998,303 917,708
65,145 61,164
38,981 36,214
7,686 7,732
1,110,115 1,022,818
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4 HBRARKZFHE 4 Other revenue and net income
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
B A Other revenue
&8 A Alteration charges 186 146
RITHBUA Bank interest income 4,575 5,587
E b F BUA Other interest income 1,919 1,910
YRS E R Claims receivable 586 860
EmESHZREUWA Dividend income from listed securities 147 406
Efth Others 4,587 3,743
12,000 12,652
Btz FEE Other net income
b M F 5 Net exchange gain 6,772 1,864
& T R IEF Net gain on disposal of land
EA W TR and building - 747
HEHMETEE Net loss on disposal of other
EEZ 8T fixed assets (2,135) (223)
EERHFEEZ Net realised and unrealised
EERNRER gain/(loss) on trading
Wz, (B518) F%8 securities 4,208 (1,138)
HEELEEEE ZWEE  Net gain on disposal of intangible
T8 (T FE5E1518) assets (note 15) 267 .
EAth Others 1,383 351
10,495 1,601
5 BB A ER 5 Profit before taxation
BREHBANE R (5FA) : Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
2008 2007
$°000 $’000
(@ RERA (@) Finance costs
AR RFRBE Interest on bank advances and

W 2007/08 =5
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5 Profit before taxation (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

(continued)
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
(b) BIpKA* (o) Staff costs*
AEMHFEEK Contributions to defined contribution
T2 R retirement plans 17,693 14,953
e IEBER Salaries, wages and
H iz A other benefits 205,118 196,929
222,811 211,882
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
() EfIEEB (c) Otheritems
BVEESH Amortisation of intangible assets 780 780
HEZEMER#E Depreciation and amortisation on
owned assets* 28,431 27,204
MR R E el sR 2 Impairment losses for trade and other receivables
REEE (T5E22(0)%8) (note 22(0)) 6,317 3,596
ZEMEe Auditors’ remuneration
—%ERE - audit services
- RS EHMEBM - KPMG 2,385 2,112
— B ST — other auditors 1,325 1,854
— BB RS - tax services 534 524
KEREER Operating lease charges*
—%ERE ~ hire of equipment 3,059 138
-WERS (B - property rentals
30,557,000 7T (including contingent
(ZE5tE: rental payments of
37,626,0007T) $30,557,000
FABEEH) (2007: $37,626,000)) 199,031 190,315
FE(RBEZ AR IA Share of associates’ taxation 9,262 8,085
REMERKES Rentals receivable from investment properties
BB RS less direct outgoings (4,252) (4,145)
FEEA (HEE21(0)8) Cost of inventories* (note 21(b)) 438,661 390,827

& FERABFEEETRA TEBARK *
“EHEEMAARM 2 31,876,000 T (ZFF
+4F : 25,398,0007T) ° BRAZENERL
A LRSI FESL)EA IRz SEEA

Cost of inventories includes $31,876,000 (2007: $25,398,000) relating to
staff costs, depreciation expenses and operating lease charges, which
amount is also included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately
above or in note 5(b) for each of these types of expenses.

2007/08 Annual Report 72



Bt 7% 3R R B &

Notes to the Financial Statements

(B ZEFT1E5N - 15 L E B 51 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

6

7

HEREMER= 6 Gain on disposal of investment properties
R-ZZEZNF-_A=-1+H ' AQF On 20 February 2008, two subsidiaries of the Company, Chenza
2 Wi fE Bt /8 A 7] Chenza Ridge Limited Ridge Limited and Parahood Limited, entered into sale and
LEREBERARSEAEE —BE T purchase agreements with an independent third party respectively
FE-HIULEREEREE MU to dispose of their factory and warehouses at Lee Chung Street,
HEHEMRBEENRE 2 IR LS Hong Kong for a total consideration of $75,311,000. These
B - %R E75311,0007C ° %% Wk agreements were completed on 28 March 2008 and a profit of
EERETENF=A=F+NAZE $45,589,000, net of legal fees of $722,000, was recognised in
BX i F45,589,0000T (B 1k 260 the consolidated profit and loss account for the year ended
B722000L) ERBE_ZTT)N\F 31 March 2008.
A=+ HLEFEZREBEER
NIER °
REBBERMIZHEBH 7 Income tax in the consolidated profit and
loss account
(a) “WEBBXRFIZHES : (a) Taxation in the consolidated profit and loss account
represents:
2008 2007
$000 $'000
REBIE - FEFEHR Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
N [Z A Provision for the year 11,231 12,608
NEFETRER Under-provision in respect of prior years 74 1,543
11,305 14,151
REHIE - FR UM E Current tax - Outside Hong Kong
KEEEH Provision for the year 4,736 4,967
WEEETR/ (BF) & Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 416 (1,675)
5,152 3,292
EERE Deferred tax
EEMBEEREER Origination and reversal of temporary differences (1,601) (3,056)
FEREHRIYA—AH Effect of decrease in tax rate on deferred tax
BERIEER L balances at 1 April (226) -
(1,827) (3,056)
14,630 14,387

BT N\FZEBNNERERE
BEAFEMTERRENZ
175% (ZZZF+EF : 17.5%) 5t
H o BHEUNIMMRHBATZ
BB A ERERZ
WITHEE o

3l 007/08 “F 3

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2008 is calculated
at 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable profits
for the year. Taxation for subsidiaries based outside Hong
Kong is charged at the appropriate current rates of taxation
ruling in the relevant jurisdictions.
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7 BREBRRMIZHER 7 Income tax in the consolidated profit and
(&) loss account (continued)

(a) GEBBZXRFIZHEAR

(a) Taxation in the consolidated profit and loss account

(%)

MRZZEEL+F=A+<8 %
TEZEARREZEAEERRX
EEEBPECEMGRE
(TF/HE)  RZTBENF—
A—HEBES - BEFHH
F BB RARERZAE
FiT 15 B¢ B¢ R B 33%2K £ 25% °

REFHE - PEMINEERE
ERETRZEE NS WENK
10%FEHH - A - EH-F
ZENF-A-BRVYBHEM[Z
i M RE G BB B B B
oo iR BRSNS E H P
FEER 2 HR BRBHBER
B AU AT BUE BB R B
o RETPEEFEZEEH
Mz AKREARANEEF
B Y B~ B AT A 2 R R AR
®5% BB R GBI -
HRAEEFBENERFR =
ZEENF-A-BRE-ZTEN
F=RA=+—HHHEEZA
MAZ - SRS EYL &L A
BifEH B -

R-_TBENE-_A-++H -
& BRI 1T IR & BR T B B R) A
EAMBHREEER  BEE=
ZEN/_ZEENFHRFE
ZHBEBMERHB17.5%FHEE
165% AR —KMEEHR _-_TZ
t+,/ —EENFEFHZES
R 2 75% PR A&25,0007T °
BIEAERBMEEANERH
FBE GRARB_ZZE
SENFZHBHREE - BRI
THAEERN - B —FF
NEEBENSHERBRAF
[EFE R R F 2 17.5%:T &
MELER BRI REE AR
MZT 7165%(Z T L F -
17.56%) 5T &

represents: (continued)

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of the Tenth
National People’s Congress passed the Corporate Income
Tax Law of the PRC (the “new tax law”) which became
effective on 1 January 2008. Under the new tax law, the
statutory income tax rate applicable to the PRC subsidiaries
has changed from 33% to 25%.

Under the new tax law, a 10% withholding tax will also be
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
PRC, however, only the dividends attributable to the profits
of the financial period starting from 1 January 2008 will be
subject to the withholding tax. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty arrangement between
the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investor. Pursuant
to a double tax arrangement between the PRC and Hong
Kong, the Group is subject to a withholding tax at the rate
of 5% for any dividend payments from the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries. In view of the insignificant profits made by the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries during the period from 1 January
2008 to 31 March 2008, no provision for withholding tax
has been made by the Group.

On 27 February 2008, the Financial Secretary of the Hong
Kong SAR Government announced his annual Budget which
proposes a cut in the profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5%
with effect from the fiscal year 2008/09 and a one-off
reduction of 75% of the tax payable for the 2007/08
assessment subject to a ceiling of $25,000. In accordance
with the Group’s accounting policy set out in note 1(r), this
decrease is taken into account in the preparation of the
Company’s 2008 financial statements. Accordingly, whilst
the provision for Hong Kong Profit Tax for 2008 is calculated
at 17.5% of the estimated assessable profits for the year,
deferred tax is calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) of the
temporary difference at the balance sheet date.
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mERBRMIZAEBH

(&)

(@) BEEBXFIZHEAS
(#)
R-TENF=ZA=+—8
B 11 5 R R B R 2B IE

ﬁﬁéﬁﬂﬁ%m%mﬁﬂa
BEEZ2ERAMETE

(b) FFE#XHAESEFZERH

7

Income tax in the consolidated profit and

loss account (continued)

(a) Taxation in the consolidated profit and loss account

represents: (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised in other tax
jurisdictions as at 31 March 2008 was measured using the
applicable tax rates in the corresponding tax jurisdictions.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

BHEISEZHEK profit at applicable tax rates:
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
FRAE R A Profit before taxation 190,874 134,431
LR AR %ZE S& Notional tax on profit before taxation,
ZHEARENE calculated at the rates applicable to
BREL AR A 2 BERIR profits in the countries concerned 17,759 11,883
AR 2 HETE Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 8,256 6,681
QFE%RHW\ZTRIE%% Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (11,649) (4,045)
iﬁﬂﬁi‘i—l—ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂ Effect on opening deferred tax balances
e R resulting from a decrease in tax rate
during the year (226) -
LAEFEZ TR, GBE) M Under/(over)-provision in respect of prior years 490 (132)
ERHRERS Actual tax expense 14,630 14,387
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8 EEM 2 8 Directors’ remuneration
BIE BB (R BHEP) % 161157 8 Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the
JEEMESWMT Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:
e BER RIRETE
=t 0k BYR=E BETEAT At st
Salaries,
allowances
and Retirement
Directors’ benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $'000 $000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000

IE Chairman
BImEk Chan Sui Kau 30 30 1,463 1,463 1,200 1,200 - - 2,693 2,693

#TEE  Executive Directors

BkZE  ChanWing Fui, Peter 30 30 - - 1,025 1,025 - - 1,085 1055
Bk#&  ChanWing Sun, Samuel 30 30 2780 2730 2,050 2,050 72 72 4882 4882
JERH%  Chan Suk Ling, Shirley 30 30 223 2236 2800 3,000 72 72 5138 5338
E&E  FuSing Yam, Willam 30 30 1,625 1625 2250 2,400 60 60 3,965 4,115
Bkt Chan Wing Kee 30 30 - - - - - - 30 30
BE  ChanWing To 30 30 - - - - - - 30 30

By Independent
#3877 Non-executive
£z Directors

ZEE  Leung Hok Lim 160 160 - - - - - - 160 160
5 Wong Lam 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60
#F  LinKeping 60 60 - - - - - - 60 60

490 490 8,054 8,004 9,325 9,675 204 204 18,073 18423

BREBEAAFBRESERTETE The details of share options granted to certain directors under
EvHEREFBEEEREST SRS the Company’s share option scheme are disclosed under the
[T 8 — e RMIFEE27IE paragraph “Share Option Scheme” in the Report of the Directors
REESIUNAFEMBERRERT and note 27. No share options were granted to the directors in
=% the current or prior year.
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9 BEME AL 9 Individuals with the highest emoluments
FRUMEeEm 2 ALTHR MW (= Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, four (2007:
TELF O) BRES - BB four) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8.
SHBHNEFESE - Eft AL 2 The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other individual
Me@BOT - are as follows:

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
%ﬁ’i\&ﬁi\@@ﬂi(ﬁ Salaries and other emoluments 910 910
E’J TEAL Discretionary bonuses 1,000 1,100
W.:‘l’g%%ﬂ( Retirement scheme contributions 60 60
1,970 2,070
— [ (ZETEF: —)MEess The emoluments of the one (2007: one) individual with the highest
ZATZH&® %E mT emoluments is within the following band:
2008 2007
A AH
Number of Number of
$ individuals individuals
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 1 -
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 - 1
0 &R 7 & IR R E L& F 10 Profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company
AAREZBREEEES G The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
HE—So 5 AKRDTIMERE % Company includes a profit of $139,953,000 (2007: $148,314,000)
#139,953,0007T (ZEE + F : which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company

(note 29(b)).
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11 R 2 11 Dividends
(a) XEEEBEZEMNTERLAE (a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
wRERE attributable to the year
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
BEIR KK A HR S i@k Interim dividend declared and paid of 13 cents
BRIU(CESLE per ordinary share (2007: 13 cents per
R A13(1) ordinary share) 19,998 19,998

REEEH 1&@%%&%5’3% g Special dividend proposed after the balance sheet
EBRERIW (CEFTLF date of 30 cents per ordinary share (2007: Nil
TEREFREW) cents per ordinary share) 46,150 -
REEBEEZEDRAHARE Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet
LTERER2L (TS L5 date of 32 cents per ordinary share (2007:

LmAFRR3210) 32 cents per ordinary share) 49,226 49,226
115,374 69,224
REEBRBEZDRZENR The special and final dividends proposed after the balance
AEBREEGARELEEARRA sheet date have not been recognised as liabilities at the
BE- balance sheet date.
(b) L1EEIBFEEMNZEMTE (b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
RAEERERE (ERFAE attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
#t & R IRAT) paid during the year
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
FEMBFEE 2 KBRS Final dividend in respect of the previous financial
LER R (ERER year, approved and paid during the year, of
BHAERRN) (CT2LF 32 cents per ordinary share (2007: 32 cents
AR EmR32(L) per ordinary share) 49,226 49,499
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12 BREA

(a) BEREXEF
EREXBANEZRBASF
B2 ARR LR EENG
170,997,000 T (ZEZE +
£ :118,121,0007L) & B %
17153,831, 72l E@E (=T =
+F ¢ i ¥ 20154,345,929
REBR)GTE - FESTRD
T

12

Earnings per share

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of $170,997,000 (2007: $118,121,000) and the
number of 153,831,792 ordinary shares (2007: weighted
average of 154,345,929 ordinary shares) in issue during the
year, calculated as follows:

2008 2007
R EE & g

Number of Number of
shares shares

TERMETLIY Weighted average number of ordinary shares
ROA—HBEETLER Issued ordinary shares at 1 April 153,831,792 154,684,792
BER 2 2 (H5E5829(c)(i)%8)  Effect of shares repurchased (note 29(c)(ii)) - (338,863)

AFEEHTLRBIETHE Weighted average number of ordinary shares

in issue during the year 153,831,792 154,345,929

(b) SREFEF
ARE_ZETLFR_FTN
FMEFERARFLEELES
BRTEINZEBE - MALE
2 ERETRF

vl
DWERRBRAEE Y X RIbE
DEIEL 2 BREBHHHLER
WALE > AMHBERTIEES
BA - MOEARRESHERZE
ERR -

RED
AEBZEIBEHBOBMMOT

- HERK: EE TERME
AR AR e

- FENgERARLKE  FRE
Mz BIRERERFFA -

— HRIRMEERYE EERKE
BRI fm »

- DEHEE: LEVERELES
WA e

9 -007/08 3

13

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The diluted earnings per share is not presented as the
Company did not have dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during both 2007 and 2008.

Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is chosen as the primary reporting format because
this is more relevant to the Group’s internal financial reporting.

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:

—  Sales of garments: the manufacture, retail and wholesale of
garments.

—  Royalty and related income: the management and licensing
of a trademark for royalty income.

- Printing and related services: the manufacture and sale of
printed products.

- Property rental: the leasing of properties to generate rental
income.
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13 2 WHF (@) 13 Segment reporting (continued)
XKD (E) Business segments (continued)
E7liEs
HERK REBYE ARREBRE VELiH AHE Y &4
Royalty and Printing and Inter-segment
Sales of garments related income related services Property rental elimination Consolidated

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
$000  §000  $000  $000  §000  $000  $000  §000  $000  §000  §000  $000

RESNAEE  Revenve from extemal

ZBA customers 998,303 917,708 65,145 61,164 38,981 36,214 7,686 7,132 - - 1,110,115 1,022,818
REEHAH  Intersegment

ZWA fevenue - - 1,007 822 2,687 2,239 6,529 6,578 (10,229) (9,639 - -
g Total 998,303 917,708 66,152 61,986 41,668 38,453 14,215 14310 (10,229) (9,639 1,110,115 1,022,818
AHEE  Segment resul 84799 86478 5897 493 624 5176 6168 7716 103,158 104,304
AUEXS  Intersegment

transactions 3,259 2,943 (101) 82) (252) 204 (2,906) (3,159) - -
SUEEHE  Contribution from
operations 88,058 89,421 5,796 4,852 6,042 5470 3,262 4,561 103,158 104,304

FAREE  Unallocated operating

WEREL  income and expenses 649 @73
iy Profit from operations 102515 101,571
REWE  Valuation gainon

HEhE investment properties - - - - - - 13400 18,600 - - 13400 18,600
HERE  Gainon disposal of

MEWE  ivestment properties - - - - - - 45589 - - - 45589 -
BARE  Finance costs (4729 699
FEEBEDNF  Share of profis less

BHHEE  losses of associates 34009 21,252 - - - - - - - - 34000 2128
Fiah Income tax (14630 (14.387)
BREET  Profi after taxation 176244 120044
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Segment reporting (continued)

Business segments (continued)

HRRERRS N B &
Printing and

related services Property rental Unallocated Consolidated
2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
000  $000  §000  $000  $000  $000  S000  $'000 000
- 1,459 1,478 2,129 2,137 239 187 29211 21,984
15,073 17549 128877 146,604 - - 593432 658,602
- - - - - - - 12340 %2144
- - - - - 400852 306042 400,852 306,042
1,117,714 1,066,788
52,325 4,274 4,75 5,871 878 - - 180974 167812
- - - - - 76563 141722 76563 141722
257537 309,634
- 178 310 - - 10 811 20208 20883

Geographical segments

The Group’s business is managed on a worldwide basis, but
participates in three principal economic environments. Hong Kong
and Macau, Taiwan and other areas of the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) are the major markets for the Group’s garment
business. Following the acquisition of Société Guy Laroche in
2005, the Group has a worldwide revenue stream from licensing
the Guy Laroche trademark. Hong Kong and Macau is the major
market for all of the Group’s other businesses.

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments,
segment revenue is based on the geographical location of
customers. Segment assets and capital expenditure are based
on the geographical location of the assets.

= HEEMHE ) ag
Other areas of

Taiwan the PRC Others Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
$000  $000  $000  $000  $000  H000  $000  $000
187,342 141342 429817 307,318 74,186 66,263 1,110,115 1,022,818
217,034 175265 193461 212,947 211,647 211492 1,117,714 1,056,788
3,292 5,080 8,235 9,083 1,234 489 20,208 20,883

B 2007/08 F =%
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13 7 MW EH (@) 13
EHB D (E)
EREE
BERK RiEBhE
Royalty and
Sales of garments related income
2008 2007 2008
$000  $000  S000 $
KEEFER  Depreciation and
i amortisation for
the year 26384 24182 -
PDHEE  Segment assets 296,167 38742 153315 165,707
BENTER  Interest in associates 123430 914 -
FAWEE  Unallocated assets - - -
BEGBE  Total assels
AHEE  Segmentlabilties 126030 109854 43,808
APEEE  Unallocated liabilties - . -
BESE  Total labilties
EREE7  Capitel expendiure
ERZH inoured during
the year 20020 19,762 -
& 5 5
AEBZEBERMTRSH - AR
—REBRERBRLE - BB
MR - BERHPEARLFE ([
Bz Ef@Es AREBRKKE
BrzxEEmME - _ZTZTHFUE
Société Guy Laroche & + AN £ [& 7] 3@
1B %% 1 Guy Laroche B 12 2 & 25 1 B
RS MBI A - BEKEF A
AEEBHMEBR 2 EEME ©
E2aMESIERE 2B WA
EANRBREZHEHABTERE - 5
MEEREATBAILNEE ZFTE
AT EEXE -
EERAM
Hong Kong and
Macau
2008 2007
$000 $000
RENREEZHRA  Revenue from external
customers 468,770 507,895
PHEE Segment assets 495,572 457,084
EmEEZ Capital expenditure
BAxi inoured durtng the year 7447 6,231
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14 B EEE 14 Fixed assets
(a) ZF&£H (a) The Group
RELER
KFER i = ERERA
Zi#k  BER o RE- ZRELH
BF He BRRRE it B& RENE &t
Interest in
leasehold
Leasehold land held
Land and improvements, for own
buildings motor vehicles, use under
held for ~ Plantand  furniture and operating  Investment
ownuse  machinery equipment Sub-total lease properties Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
AAEE Cost or valuation:
RZETAENA-H At 1 April 2006 118,062 44,552 105,579 268,193 7317 63,300 338,870
3k Exchange adjustments 1,449 97 2,083 4,439 340 - 4779
AE Additions 26 1,316 19,541 20,883 - - 20,883
& Disposals (1,400) (114) (8732 (10,846) - - (10,846)
ATEEAE Fair value adjustment - - - - - 18,600 18,600
RoFELEZA=+-H A3t March 2007 18,137 46,111 18,421 282,669 17,717 81,900 372,286
f&: Representing:
A Cost 118,137 46111 18421 282,669 1,117 - 290,386
fEE-—ET+%E Valuation - 2007 - - - - - 81,900 81,900
118,137 46,111 118,421 282,669 7,7 81,900 372,286
R=ZE+ENA-A At 1 April 2007 118,137 46,111 118,421 262,609 77 81,900 372,286
B AR Exchange adjustments 3226 2,250 6,561 12,087 75 - 12,792
AE Additions - 862 19,346 20,208 - - 20,208
if Disposals - (995) (21,329) (22,324) - (29,000) (51,324)
ATEERZ Fair value adjustment - - - - - 13400 13400
REFENEZA=+-H  At31 March 2008 121,363 48,228 122,999 292,590 8,472 66,300 367,362
fi%&: Representing:
KA Cost 121,363 48,208 122,999 292,590 8472 - 301,062
fHE-—ETNE Valuation - 2008 - - - - - 66,300 66,300
121,363 48,208 122,999 292,590 8,472 66,300 367,362
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14 B EEE (#)
(a) Z*£Z@E (&)

ZiBERTE .

RoFEAERA-E
Bide
ERRERAE
erAD
HoFFLEZAZ-R
RoETLERA-A
Bide
FEERIRIE
erAa
HoFEEZAZH-R

BERE:
HoFFEZAZt-B
HoFFLEZAZ-R

B3 2007/08 F &

Accumulated
amortisation and
depreciation:

At 1 Apri 2006

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2007

At 1 April 2007

Exchange adjustments
Charge for the year
Written back on disposals

At 31 March 2008

Net book value:

At 31 March 2008

At 31 March 2007

14 Fixed assets (continued)

(a) The Group (continued)

RELER
KRR HEeT E5EER
Zi#Rk  BER 8 R ZHRELY
g7 i PUYEG it Bi RENE aif
Interest in
leasehold
Leasehold land held
Land and improvements, for own
buildings motor vehicles, use under
held for ~ Plantand  furniture and operating  Investment
ownuse  machinery equipment Sub-total lease properties Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
31,974 31,366 63,812 127,152 2,256 - 129,408
587 450 846 1,883 107 - 1,990
2,608 2,684 2774 27,006 138 - 21,204
(364) (709) (8,351) (9,424) - - (9.424)
34,805 33,791 78,081 146,677 2,501 - 149,178
34,805 33,791 78,081 146,677 2,501 - 149,178
1,355 1,165 3,773 6,293 253 - 6,546
2,631 2,521 28,132 28,284 147 = 28,431
- (995) (16,686 (17,681) - - (17,681)
38,791 36,482 88,300 163,573 2,901 - 166,474
82,572 11,746 34,699 129,017 5511 66,300 200,888
83,332 12,320 40,340 135,992 5216 81,900 223,108
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14 B & & E (@) 14 Fixed assets (continued)
(b) & A7 (b) The Company

HEBFRE  RE -
ERRRE
Leasehold improvements,
motor vehicles, furniture
and equipment

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
B Cost:
M A—A At 1 April 6,125 5,834
NE Additions 10 811
HeE Disposals (563) (520)
SV i== - — H At 31 March 5,572 6,125
Bt IE - Accumulated depreciation:
MW A—H At 1 April 5,367 5,700
REENE Charge for the year 237 187
i e HE [E] Written back on disposals (563) (520)
vAEls - —F At 31 March 5,041 5,367
FRIEFE - Net book value:
BISVESS — At 31 March 531 758
(c) NEBEMEKREMECDRN _-Z (c) Allinvestment properties of the Group were revalued as at
ENEFEF=ZA=+—HLHBFY 31 March 2008 on an open market value basis calculated
B ERITE - AFE BT GE by reference to net rental income allowing for reversionary
REXENAERATIL2RRBHE income potential. The valuations were carried out by an
S ASERE T E B Y e independent firm of surveyors, Savills Valuation and
BERARIHE Y ANTE Professional Services Limited, who have among their staff
/B M7 A R

Fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the location and category of the properties
being valued.

EEETHE - ZRBIZET
REBHNEMBGEEREER -
HFAEEMEZLERERNE
BRI R B o
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14 BEEE (8) 14 Fixed assets (continued)
(d) AEBEMEZERFESGE (d) The analysis of net book value or valuation of properties of
AT the Group is as follows:
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
B In Hong Kong
—RHHEE — long leases 40,010 70,018
—H RS - medium-term leases 77,426 64,807
FEEAIMEER Outside Hong Kong
—HHIEE — medium-term leases 25,825 24,100
—fHEIEE — short-term leases 11,182 11,523
154,443 170,448
Rk : Representing:
T RiEF Land and buildings 82,572 83,332
WEWE Investment properties 66,300 81,900
148,872 165,232
R EHEREER Interest in leasehold land held for
ZTHE TR own use under operating lease 5,571 5,216
154,443 170,448
() HEMEFRBREETEERAE (e) Included in investment properties are certain properties with
£53,700,000 (ZEZ L F - an aggregate carrying value of $53,700,000 (2007:
57,700,00070) 2 W1 %+ % EW $57,700,000) which are pledged to banks for obtaining
FOEMTRITUBRBRITE banking facilities of which $1,131,000 was utilised as at 31
E MRZZEZNF=ZA=F March 2008 (2007: $Nil).
—B - EFRAZKRTEESSE
A& #£A1,131,000L (ZET+
F:E) o

B9 2007/08 F &
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14 EEEE (&)
(H AEBBREWMEZHBEHOT

bk BATR%
JEEFT A M A B E205% WRER
T R B I
B BEASE18% IR
5N 5
BEmEEEEAR N
EIBRTEAE7E TRk
B-C D GRHE - =y
R8Iz E AL
NER R HT28% I
MHRIBAE6E
2NAERSIBIN2E

(9) UBREHEHHLZEELRE :
AEENKEHERLREY
X AR AEH—ZER
FAAREREIHRARE
B ERMAGROAEND
- BRAKLEHEHTEBER

NREHESBEEREMTE
BREREVEERZME -
HEESREME -

A

14 Fixed assets (continued)

(f)  Details of the Group’s investment properties are as follows:

Term of
Location Existing use lease
G/F and M/F, 20 Tai Yau Street, Offices and Medium
San Po Kong, Kowloon factories
G/F, 18 Ng Fong Street, Factories and Medium
San Po Kong, Kowloon shops

Unit B, C, D, G and H on 7/F, and Offices, factories Medium
Car Parking Space No. 8 on 1/F, and warehouses

Wah Shun Industrial Building,

4 Cho Yuen Street,

Yau Tong, Kowloon

Unit Nos. 2 and 4 on 6/F, and Factories Medium
Unit Nos. 1 and 2 on 8/F,

Lee Sum Factory Building,

28 Ng Fong Street, Kowloon

(g) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases:

The Group leases out investment properties under operating
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of one to
five years, with an option to renew the lease upon expiry at
which time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

All properties held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of investment properties are
classified as investment property.

2007/08 Annual Report 86




A H & H [Mic Mac] 1% + 815 & for proceeds of $342,000 realising a gain of $267,000.
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14 EBEEE (&) 14 Fixed assets (continued)
(9 UKLELEHEHHZEETEE : (9) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases:
(#&) (continued)
REBRBITEBER 2&EHE The Group’s total future minimum lease receipts under
EfHBER2EERENRK non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:
AN T
2008 2007
$’000 $'000
—F RN Within 1 year 2,876 4,882
—FREAFR After 1 year but within 5 years 2,940 5,061
5,816 9,943
156 BEEE 15 Intangible assets
REE
The Group
hEER [5EEd g
Licence Trademarks Total
$’000 $°000 $°000
Yo% Cost:
RZZZREMA—BR  At1 April 2006 and
—EEHF=A=1+—H 31 March 2007 9,364 102,125 111,489
R-ZEZE+EMB—H At 1 April 2007 9,364 102,125 111,489
HE Disposal - (75) (75)
WZZZEN\F=A=1+—H At 31 March 2008 9,364 102,050 111,414
Bty Accumulated amortisation:
R-ZEENA—H At 1 April 2006 1,365 - 1,365
AEFHH Charge for the year 780 - 780
RZTZLFE=HA=+—H At 31 March 2007 2,145 - 2,145
R-ZE+FEMA—H At 1 April 2007 2,145 - 2,145
$¢f B Charge for the year 780 - 780
ZTENF=A=+—H At 31 March 2008 2,925 - 2,925
FREFHE - Net book value:
RZEENF=A=F+—H At 31 March 2008 6,439 102,050 108,489
RZZEZLF=A=+—H At 31 March 2007 7,219 102,125 109,344
FR - A EL342,0007T 2 Fr 5 5 During the year, the Group disposed of its “Mic Mac” trademark
267,0007T °
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15 BILEE (®|)

Guy Laroche® 1% 18 {F 7] & R 8 &
B wiRESHBRIEE1)EA

BRE+ —_F (RRBERZGE
REH) 2 HREHE - -AFEZ2H
HERASARABRERZIDHX
Z NI

A R B 7] F7AS B GE B i AE e B A
=

Guy Laroche 1% A 7% 72 7] 18 37 % 7
2 Guy Laroche# #% o

Guy Larochefd 1% 2 AJ g Bl & B TH 1R
BEREBEFEETE - BHEFTER
AEEEERAEZAFTHESRE
TBE c AFHEZESRERAT
BEREY - TEEHRE TRE
CHEAEKBEZTERRI2AEMEE
Ay BIrESREERERR
HalgE €% -

AEEREERRAZEERR

15 Intangible assets (continued)

The Guy Laroche trademark is considered to have an indefinite
useful life and is accounted for in accordance with accounting
policy note 1()).

The licence is amortised over a period of 12 years being the
estimated useful life of the licence. The amortisation charge for
the year is included within “Distribution costs” in the consolidated
profit and loss account.

Impairment test for trademark with indefinite useful economic
life

The Guy Laroche trademark services the Guy Laroche operations
which are separately identifiable.

The recoverable amount of the Guy Laroche trademark has been
determined based on value-in-use calculations. The calculation
uses cash flow projections based on a five-year period approved
by management. Cash flows beyond the five-year period have
been extrapolated using a nil per cent growth rate. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in the key
assumptions on which the recoverable amount is based would
not cause the carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculation:

2008 2007
— R — Growth rate 0% 0%
—RERE — Gross contribution rate 89% 86%
— IR E - Discount rate 10% 8%

EEERBEERRREEMEH
ReBAHETERENBRRE -
FRRAZ TR BAREE 2 InHEF1

Management determined the growth rate and gross contribution
rate based on the past performance and its expectations for
market development. The discount rate used is the weighted
average cost of capital of the Group.
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HERBRE-—HNBARARME
EE-FMEZHEERT N ZH
BMefMZMBARNTHBERAZY
X RlEEKSHERLET T —(E
HE A HERBRKRERE
BFERPAIBEEFY NEER
BERPERENBREEET R

TRAMBARZRE

2008 2007
$’000 $’000
JE ETRRMD » 3RAKAN{E Unlisted shares, at cost 11,003 11,003
JE UG BT BB A R FRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 665,147 585,752
676,150 596,755
FE ST BT B8~ R RIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (40,451) (20,566)
635,699 576,189
B RERE Less: impairment loss (72,850) (72,850)
562,849 503,339

FEW & KB AR RIE T &K Amounts due from and to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest

o %E&ﬂliﬁfkﬁﬁ (ESER]
REEH-FATEEER -

FEENBRAAZERFBHNE
127H 251288 »

89 -007/08 F =%

15 LA % ¥ 51| 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

16 HEEER 16 Lease premium
A%
The Group

2008 2007

$°000 $°000

[E Cost 9,595 9,595

M H R Exchange adjustment 2,101 317
11,696 9,912

Lease premium represents an amount paid by a subsidiary to

obtain the right to lease a property in France. In the
the subsidiary vacates the property, the subsidiary

event that
would be

entitled to sell the right to the lease to the next tenant. Accordingly,
the lease premium is considered to have an indefinite useful
economic life and is carried in the balance sheet at cost less

impairment losses.

17 Investments in subsidiaries

free and have no fixed terms of repayment but are not expected

to be settled within one year of the balance sheet dat

e.

Details of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 127 to

128.
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18 & RNA R 18 Interest in associates
AEH ARAFE
The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007

$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000

JE LA - K AME Unlisted investment, at cost - - 30,000 30,000
EHIRE - LKA Listed investment, at cost - - 12,595 12,595
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 128,150 96,864 - -
128,150 96,864 42,595 42,595

B REEE Less: impairment loss - - (25,280) (25,280)
128,150 96,864 17,315 17,315

(@ TR AEELEEN—HB
BRARIZHEDZ  2HWEH
3BQE - M _EELF=ZA=F
—H - AEERZBEAR—
% B 817,799,0007T 2 fE U E s
BHESEEE 28WE$
19K 33()E - REER - KNEE
EiEzEBEERERMERE
RE WM - Atk WEHE
2-FEFNF=ZRA=+—8HIt
FEZHEABRREKRTE -

(b) R—_ZTEENF=ZA=+—8"
AARR bl EMIEEEBRR
2 ¥EZSTH{E 4&118,708,0007T (=
T E+ 4 : 140,840,0007T) ©

(c) BELAEHHEE

—EBN\EF 2008

100% 100 percent

AEEZ Group’s effective
B interest

—EZTtHF 2007

100% 100 percent

REEZ Group’s effective
B interest

BREEBMERNAZERNFBHENE
1298 £ £ 1308 -

(a) During the year, the Group disposed of its interest in an
associate, see note 33(c). As at 31 March 2007, the Group
had shared a loss of $7,799,000 in respect of this associate
representing a loan receivable in the same amount, see notes
19 and 33(d). On disposal the Group’s share of losses has
been reversed while the loan receivable has been written
off, and accordingly, there is no impact on the consolidated
profit and loss account for the year ended 31 March 2008.

(b) The market value of the Company’s interest in the ordinary
shares of the above listed investment at 31 March 2008
was $118,708,000 (2007: $140,840,000).

(c) Summary information on associates:

BE afE R WA pig|
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenue Profit
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000 $000

1,295,255 (660,690) 634,565 2,196,633 168,307

266,911 (138,761) 128,150 450,756 34,099

1,099,571 (621,305) 478,266 2,086,474 104,679

227,319 (130,455) 96,864 429,568 21,252

Details of the principal associates are set out on pages 129
to 130.
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E

ARIEE

B

Unlisted

19 Other non-current financial assets

Other equity securities

Unlisted investment security
Less: impairment

B 7 3R R M EE
Notes to the Financial Statements
(B EHEATIESN + 9L 1|7~ i
199 EMERBDBMEEE
BEZBHEKES  Held-to-maturity debt securities
JEL™ i
Hib R A E S i iti
ELMIEEFES i i i
R :impai
il
#.8 (M7E5E33(e)8)
ARG - impai
(a)
:Eh \'A-‘/\ Jr A
: ,0007T YEBEZE
FHE 5 | & i
(b)

BFH2E2AR2EREEIK
A LAFEBReEF B RAERNS
FEHEFIOFRERE - B
—EE+HF=ZA=+—H

33,954,000 BN —E——F+
—AhBEZ:
BN T ——

gh yom
H IR °

f1 7,799,0007T
FRAZTMA

NS

.

ERNR NS ERBERIE
R B 497,799,000 (ZEZE+
& 1 47) K 420,0005T (= +
F 1 422,0007T) EREE

ZENF=ZRA=+—HILFEE
e (2HMEEIBOHE) - B
—EENF=ZRA=+—H" &
45 #433,834,000 LB — T —
—F+—RBhLHEE-

e N ERRNBEEBZRAF
818 532,620,000t (— T T+
1 35,181,0007T) ° A F(EE
TIAARKRBR S REZIRERRA
By TAZRTMSE N X
WBE-HHE -

EMmEAESAREBRHE
BARRIZEE -

XN JEst  Loans to associates and accrued
interest (note 33(e))
Less: impairment

TEE NG|

The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 $'000 $000 $'000
1,294 1,140 = -
6,900 6,900 - -
(6,900) (6,900) - -
33,834 41,753 33,834 41,753
- - - (7,799)
33,834 41,753 33,834 33,954
35,128 42,893 33,834 33,954

(a) The loans to associates are unsecured, interest bearing at
6% per annum and repayable after ten years from the date
of advance. As at 31 March 2007, $33,954,000 was due to
be repaid on 9 November 2011 and $7,799,000 due to be
repaid on 24 June 2012.

The principal loan balance and interest payable thereon by
an associate of approximately $7,799,000 (2007: $Nil) and
$420,000 (2007: $422,000) were respectively waived for the
year ended 31 March 2008 (see note 33(d)). As at 31 March
2008, the loan balance of $33,834,000 was due to be repaid
on 9 November 2011.

The fair value of the loans to associates at the balance sheet
date is $32,620,000 (2007: $35,181,000). The fair value is
estimated as the present value of future cash flows,
discounted at current market interest rates for similar financial
instruments.

(b) Other equity securities represents the Group’s investment
in a corporation in the PRC.
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20 FEERAZZRS 20 Trading securities
TEH ¥ NN
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $'000 $°000 $000
EEERZEZES Trading securities
(&M E) (at market value)
LETRAES Listed equity securities
—REB - in Hong Kong 2,564 3,977 2,564 3,977
— BB AR — outside Hong Kong 2,794 - 2,794 -
5,358 3,977 5,358 3,977
FHEHES Listed debt securities
— BB AIMNBE — outside Hong Kong 6,565 - - -
11,923 3,977 5,358 3,977
21 B8 21 Inventories
(a) BEEEBXAZFERRE (a) Inventories in the balance sheet comprise:
REH
The Group
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
R HE Raw materials 18,972 24,167
R Work in progress 6,360 7,345
BUBK o Finished goods 112,377 149,353
137,709 180,865
(b)) BRABBEZTHEEHESTUOT (b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense is as follows:
AEE
The Group
2008 2007
$’000 $'000
BEGFEZERmE Carrying amount of inventories sold 435,935 391,979
FEMOR, (R R)  Write-down of inventories/(reversal of write-down) 2,726 (1,152)
438,661 390,827
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22 FEWBR R & H b FE L XX

22 Trade and other receivables

KEE b N
The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $'000 $°000 $°000

FEURBRFN ~ FEURZEIE « Debtors, bills receivable, deposits
Ze RBERNR and prepayments 133,944 137,101 648 907

JE WS B8 38 N R IR Amounts due from related

(KH=E5533(e)38) companies (note 33(e)) 3,882 878 139 355
ZEEE Club memberships 860 860 750 750
138,686 138,839 1,537 2,012

B 858 2 Bl /2860,000C (ZE T+
% : 860,0007T) K& 32,472,0007T (=
TE 4 : 30,431,0007T) 2 & FTE
BREEeI  FBRYRRREA
W RIBI AR —FARAURE -

(a) BRE 77

P& L2 B R e L At B W R B2 HE R
WS K BN R E (BB RE
RBEER)  HBEE#ERZ
Rk DT T

All of the trade and other receivables, apart from club
memberships and deposits of $860,000 (2007: $860,000) and
$32,472,000 (2007: $30,431,000) respectively, are expected to
be recovered within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors
and bills receivable (net of impairment losses for bad and

doubtful debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the
balance sheet date:

REME
The Group

2008 2007

$°000 $'000

A1 HR Current 66,522 72,085

wmE—Z==1EA 1 to 3 months 4,798 5,547
B ERER A =18 B More than 3 months but

BN+ —{EA less than 12 months 1,245 2,070

72,565 79,702

BRI TR EE
HHEI2 302908 M BIHE - K&
BEEREZE —FFHFBHAR
B 5F 5 30(2)18 °

(b) EUREHRERERZHEE

ERERUIRR R EREEZR
BEEERARERTACE
BRIFARKEABEREZKEAZ
AREERE - RUEBRT - &
18 65 18 B 12 70 1B W AR 7R e g
S (25 M &% 10
) o

93 2007/08 F =&

Trade debtors and bills receivable are due within 30 to 90
days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group’s
credit policy is set out in note 30(a).

(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless
the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade
debtors and bills receivable directly (see note 1(k)(i)).
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22 FEUNBR R K H b FE I =R (@)

(b) EREFRERER ZHE (b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable
(4 ) (continued)
FA - REBEZEZE (BRIER
EREBBEINMD AT :

22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during
the year, including both specific and collective loss
components, is as follows:

REH
The Group

2008 2007

$°000 $'000
RUA—AH At 1 April 8,550 4,764
b W =5 Exchange difference 1,455 287
BERREEE Impairment loss recognised 6,317 3,596
MEE A Y|l > 4% Uncollectible amounts written off (1,200) 97)
R=A=+—8 At 31 March 15,122 8,550
RZZEENF=ZA=+—H8 " &&E At 31 March 2008, the Group’s trade debtors of $3,595,000

[ 2 75 1A £ F FE UBR 51.3,595,0007T
(ZZTZT 4 : 3,068,0007T) A
BE-ZEETARETCARBEZRE
WHBHENEREZFERE

(2007: $3,068,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and management
assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected

BEEENG  BHETREZE
Uz —3H - Bt - BHER
5 F REREME 53,497,000 (—Z 2 E
£ 1 2,084,0007T) ° ANEE W EFE
RERBBRFHEEENEKES -

(c) 3 #E 18 = fE WK AR 5

I 4 18 5l 2k SR B AR B RE 2
MW BR R 2 BRE DT T -

(c)

to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for
doubtful debts of $3,497,000 (2007: $2,984,000) were
recognised. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

KEE
The Group

2008 2007

$°000 $°'000

AREERSORE Neither past due nor impaired 59,692 75,178

B H DR —(E A Less than 1 month past due 17,068 1,880

BHA—=={AA 1 to 3 months past due 5,571 4,711
A HAE A =18 A More than 3 months

BLR+=@A but less than 12 months 1,761 3,415

24,400 10,006

84,092 85,184
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13 42 380 B SORN 1B 2 B WK B R
ZUEBOPARRGLEZEFE
7 e

CEMEREREBRKES
RBIEFPEH REEPH
AEBZEERLERYT - RE
EXEY  BERDBRRA
BEEE  HEEERERA
B F A RIE LR ERE - &
SEYER M EEBRITEEM
4 ah

22 Trade and other receivables (continued)

(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired (continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

23 Cash and cash equivalents

EME PN
The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000

T E A BT Deposits with banks and
e other financial institutions 93,555 86,166 85,500 79,852
GFRRRE Cash at bank and in hand 183,078 107,616 4,205 3,541

BERATZ Cash and cash equivalents in

ERIBEEEY the balance sheet

276,633 193,782 89,705 83,393

WERERAMR  Cash and cash equivalents in
ReRkiReE the consolidated cash flow

) statement

B % &
Notes to the Financial Statements
(B 5B B850 » 15 L4 B 31| 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
22 BWERAM R HME WK @
(c)
3 =
WEEREAESEEY
R1T
1 S
"e
)
$R17:F X ([ 52518) Bank overdrafts (note 25) (20,089) (3,391)
G
i &%
&

256,544 190,391
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24 ERNBRARRH Mt BNFRK 24 Trade and other payables
rEE ¥ NN
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $'000 $°000 $000
JERT R Bills payable 1,995 7,345 1,995 7,345
JERTERSX BT B Creditors and accrued charges 179,586 163,185 5,645 4,238
FERTEAE A RIFK Amounts due to related companies
(MI5E5233(e)18) (note 33(e)) 7,059 8,885 - -
188,640 179,415 7,640 11,583
A RMERREMAENSRESRE All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled
R—FAEE - within one year.
ERERREMEMNKEBEESR Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors and bills
HKEENEE  EEEZE&ERAZE payable with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet
oM date:
rEE ¥ NN
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $'000 $°000 $000
— & A A EE Due within 1 month or
378 RS 51| HR on demand 23,977 32,992 1,995 7,345
—@A%E Due after 1 month but within
=& AN EE 3 months 27,929 31,323 - -
=f@R/%E Due after 3 months but within
N ENEIE 6 months 1,259 2 - -
~EA#&E Due after 6 months but within
+ =18 A R 3IE 12 months 1,438 - - -
54,603 64,317 1,995 7,345
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25 Bank loans and overdrafts

Bt 3% 3R} & M EE
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5HRMITERREX
RZZEZENF=A=+—H R At 31 March 2008, the bank loans and overdrafts were repayable
BERRBEIT Z2ERPHOT : as follows:
KEH
The Group
2008 2007
$°000 $°000
—FREEEBA Within 1 year or on demand 38,942 56,499
—FREMFR After 1 year but within 2 years 2,237 12,749
WEREBERERN After 2 years but within 5 years 4,169 36,289
6,406 49,038
45,348 105,537
EA:E ZENF=ZA=+—H " E17 At 31 March 2008, the bank loans and overdrafts were secured
BEREBELT 2EBERLOT as follows:
KEH
The Group
2008 2007
$°000 $°000
IR ITIAY Unsecured bank
(FzE562378) overdraft (note 23) 20,089 3,391
RITER Bank loans
—BEH - secured - 52,736
— R — unsecured 25,259 49,410
45,348 105,537
RZEBEZLF=A=+—1H0 K As at 31 March 2007, the secured bank loan was borrowed by a
HIERTERBA —HMBAREBA - subsidiary. The loan of $52,736,000 was secured over trade
7 8152,736,0007T 2 E R A ZM B A receivables of a subsidiary of that subsidiary and royalty income
Gl 2 — Fﬁ M8 A Az EUERRA R amounting to $25,944,000 at 31 March 2007 and $60,698,000
RZEZTEF=ZA=+—BEk#H= for the year then ended, respectively. The bank loan bore interest
#ZA Jtirt‘* 5 Bl A& £125,944,0007T & at LIBOR plus 1.35%.
60,698,0007T 2 Z | B U&= 1E K
o ZERITERZFE EfmFIR

All of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain of the Group’s balance sheet ratios,
as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial
institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants the drawn
down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group
regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. Further
details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 30(b). As at 31 March 2008 none of the covenants relating
to drawn down facilities had been breached (2007: $Nil).
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BEEERKEF
AEENDEBEBCEFMELAES
FFEVEOD 2 RE - BREBEEFEBUE
EIEFIIER 2 BB &8 & D
HEEFE ([RESTE]) - RES
e —IEREHRFENRETE - A
BUXTAAEBEERE - BERES
iEBEREESALREE RSB
WA 7 5%MM #% &t &l /B 1
RBBW Az EBR %&20,0007T © [
ZETEER 2R TDASEB -
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BINFE] o ML EME R 2 HkiE
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SUAEES TEREAZEE
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Employee retirement benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to
the scheme vest immediately.

Subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC and France participate in
the defined contribution retirement schemes operated by the local
authorities for employees in the PRC and France, respectively.
Contributions to these schemes are charged to the profit and
loss account when incurred.

A subsidiary established in Taiwan participates in a defined benefit
retirement plan established in accordance with the local Labour
Standards Law. Contributions to the plan are based upon 2% of
wages and salaries paid. The scheme is not material to the Group
and, therefore, the disclosures required by HKAS 19, “Employee
benefits” issued by the HKICPA have not been presented.

Equity settled share-based transactions

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 23 September 2004 whereby the Directors of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up
options at nil consideration to subscribe for shares in the
Company. The options vest after 30 days from the date of grant
and are then exercisable within a period of ten years. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.
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of the period 12.1 11,791 12.1 11,983

HR AT 17{% 2 B AR 4 Exercisable at the end
of the period 12.1 11,791 121 11,983
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2T REEEXZ (1) 27 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

a UTEEEFERTEREZ (a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during
RARIFIH  FTEBRESE the years are as follows, whereby all options are settled
BEEXHTRGZE : by physical delivery of shares:

BRE

BREHE b s BHHR
Number of Vesting Contractual
instruments conditions life of options

RYEE BIE: Options granted to Directors:

-RZZTRE-A++H —on 17 January 2005 7,850,000 i HER#30R T4

30 days from 10 years
the date of grant

RTEB 2 BLE Options granted to employees:

-RZEERF-AT+tA - on 17 January 2005 4,274,000 R BH#308 +F

30 days from 10 years
the date of grant

BilREes Total share options 12,124,000

(b) BREZBERMEFIEHITEE (b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of
o options are as follows:

2008 2007
IR 33 S
THEE BREZKE IFEE  EREZE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
$ ‘000 $ ‘000
HIWIARTTE B Outstanding at the beginning
of the period 12.1 11,983 12.1 12,027
HRR B ke B i Lapsed during the period 12.1 (192) 12.1 (44)
HIRRTiE 2 B AR Outstanding at the end
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2T  REZEERZ (#) 27 Equity settled share-based transactions
(continued)

(b) BREZERMEFIGITEE (b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of
wmE (&) options are as follows: (continued)
AFEEHRERDSITEEME No options were granted or exercised during the year (2007:
BE(ZZEZF &) o Nil).

RZEBEZENF=ZA=+—HX The options outstanding at 31 March 2008 had an exercise

TEERECTEREAI121T price of $12.1 (2007: $12.1) and a weighted average

—ETLF 1247T) 0 i remaining contractual life of 7 years (2007: 8 years).
FHEHBENFRATF(ZF
THF8F) o
BEEREBERZEBHR 28 Income tax in the balance sheet
(a) BEEEXFIFAZAEBFEHRSE (a) Current taxation in the balance sheets represents:
TEE NG
The Group The Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000

REEEBFGHER  Provision for Hong Kong Profits

Tax for the year 11,231 12,608 720 652

ENEHFIEH Provisional Profits Tax paid (12,711) (11,752) (828) (560)

(1,480) 856 (108) 92
EEERGEH Balance of Profits Tax provision
Kl relating to prior years - 181 - 180

BELIMBETIB2E#E  Provision for tax outside Hong Kong 7,966 9,556 - -

RERFIE Current taxation 6,486 10,593 (108) 272

RO - Analysed as follows:

RERAIR B TR Current tax recoverable (3,408) - (108) -

RERRERTPR1SHE Current tax payable 9,892 10,593 - 272

6,486 10,598 (108) 272
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28 EEEBBRZEBH @) 28 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued)
(b) EBAEZEHEEENARE - (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
i) A& ()  The Group
EREGEEERBERER The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
ZEERE(EE) AE recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the
O RAFEFEESHMOT movements during the year are as follows:
BHERTE HEFE
RBEHE EfENE —REE =RwilE am
Depreciation
in excess of
the related Revaluation Future
depreciation of General benefit of
allowance properties provisions tax losses Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
BERERE ¢ Deferred tax arising
from:
RZEERFNA—H At 1 April 2006 (3,822) 13,582 (22,279 (25,061) (37,580)
B 5 AR Exchange adjustments (19) - (52) (2,514) 2,579)
EBRERIZ/ Charged/(credited)
EA) to the profit and
loss account 1535 875 5,121 (10,587) (3,056)
RZZZE+F=A=+—H At31 March 2007 (2,300) 14,457 (17,210) (38,162) (43,215)
R-BTLEMA—A At April 2007 (2,300 14,457 (17,210) (38,162) (43,215)
B 5 AR Exchange adjustments 1) - (683) (5,603) (6,307)
BEHEHREL Effect of decrease in
Wk 8 tax rate on opening
deferred tax balances 68 (838) 74 470 (226)
EBEEGIA) /5% (Credited)/charged
to the profit and
loss account (2,079) 1,836 (1,214) (144) (1,601)
RZZZNF=ZA=+—H At31 March 2008 (4,332) 15,455 (19,033) (43,439 (51,349

POW -007/08 = 3



Bt 7% 3R R B &

Notes to the Financial Statements
(B 5B A5 98 - 15 L% # 51| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

28 EEEBEBRZMBH @)

b) EFZELFHBELEMNERE & (&) (b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: (continued)
(iy A2F (i)  The Company

28 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued)

EREERBRERZE
T\ (BE) aEHH

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the balance sheet and the movements

EAREZEBHMT : during the year are as follows:
BHEBNE
2REZNE —REHE ]
Depreciation
in excess of
the related
depreciation General
allowances provisions Total
$000 $000 $000
ERERIER S ¢ Deferred tax arising from:
RZZEZERFNA—H At 1 April 2006 (26) (310) (336)
EERRIIX Charged to the profit and
loss account 91 310 401
RZZEZ+F=A=+—H At 31 March 2007 65 - 65
RZZEZ+FMA—H At 1 April 2007 65 - 65
SRR RS IR Effect of decrease in tax rate on
R Il 4 opening deferred tax balances @) - (4)
FEBEFRFA Credited to the profit and
loss account (21) - 21)
RZZEZENF=A=1+—H At 31 March 2008 40 - 40
TEE AT
The Group The Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
$°000 $'000 $000 $'000
HEEEBRERABRZ  Net deferred tax assets
RERBEEFE recognised in the
balance sheet (65,006) (57,204) - -
FEEAEBERAERZ  Net deferred tax liabilities
FERIEEERE recognised in the
balance sheet 13,657 13,989 40 65
(51,349) (43,215) 40 65
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28 EEEBBRZEBH @)

(c)

FBRCEEHBELE
R-_ZEZENF=Z/A=+—H"
—EAEZHB QR RIKE G
F 2 b5 1 2= 58 5 56,728,0007T
—ZT L4 ¢ 55275,0007T) °
BRARREHZK B AR
PEBBE  MZzWHBARIRE
SRETE ] R A% 2R AR A] gE TR 2%
wmA BRI AERAERD
RZEREBEFMEEREM
W R 2 EERE B & 11,356,000
T (ZZEZTEF 8,292,000
JT) °

20 R AR 1B

(a)

rEH

RZZZFMA—H A1 Aprl 2006
BREL N Lapse of share options
BEFEEHAERS  Dividend approved in respect

of the previous year

R EE Purchase of own shares
-BREEE - par value paid
-BiEE ~ premium paid
—fhfEmEg - transfer between reserves

FEEEMIMBARF  Exchange differences on
BBREMEEL translation of the financial

ERER statements of subsidiaries
based outside Hong Kong
EfEBERRZ Share of exchange reserve of
SNEREE assocates
TFEE&ET Profit for the year
FEERERRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year
BAVHERER 2 Dividends paid to minority
4} interests
RZERLE
=fA=1-H At 31 March 2007

103 -007/08 =5

28 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued)

(c) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 March 2008, temporary differences relating to the
undistributed profits of a subsidiary based in Taiwan
amounted to $56,728,000 (2007: $55,275,000). Deferred
tax liabilities of $11,356,000 (2007: $8,292,000) have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable
on the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has
been determined that it is probable that profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

29 Capital and reserves

(a) The Group

RARE BEMz HERR
i Bk ROEE BE RAEE BRERE JERE RO ] Bx  ERAE
Associate’s
Capital share
Share Share redemption  Capital option  Exchange  Retained Minority Total

Note capital  premium reserve  reserve reserve  reserve  profits Total interests  equity
$000 $000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000 §000 $000  §000

77,342 133,383 4,220 23,092 703 9,921 433,168 681,829 18,821 700,650

27 - - - @® - - % - = 5
11() - - - - - - (49499) (49,499) - (49,499)
(426) - - - - - - ) )

- - - - - - 502 (5,00 - [502)

- - 4% - - - %) - . ~

- - - - %7 - 231 (185) 213

- - - - - 3% - 3% -

- - - - - - 118121 118,121 1,923 120,044
1(a) - - - - - - (19,998) (19,998) - (19,99)

_ _ _ _ . - - - (986 (986)

76,916 133,383 4,646 23,007 703 12,597 476,429 727,681 19,573 747,254
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20 AR @B (@) 29 Capital and reserves (continued)
(a) #&&EH (&) (a) The Group (continued)
BARE BEATZ HERR
(i3 Bx R e BAGE BRERE JERE REE ] R RESE
Associate’s
Capital share
Share Share redemption  Capital option  Exchange  Retained Minority Total

Note capital  premium reserve  reserve reserve  resevve  profits Total interests  equity
§000 §000 $000 $000 $000 §000 $000 $000 $000  $000

RZZZLEMA—A A1 April 2007 76,916 133,383 4,646 23,007 703 12,597 476,429 727,681 19,573 747,254
IR Lapse of share options 27 - - - (369 - - 369 - - -
BEFECHERS  Dividend approved in respect

of the previous year 11(b) - - - - - - (49,226) (49,226) - (49,226)

WEEBINIBARE  Exchange differences on
BBBREMEL L translation of the financial

EXER statements of subsidiaries
based outside Hong Kong - - - - - 9612 - 9612 1553 11,165
HEBENABESR  Exchange reserve realised
ZINERE on disposal of associate - - - - - ey - e - (16
JEEBE AR ZIME  Share of exchange reserve of
i associates - - - - - (339 - (339 - (83
RER T Profit for the year - - - - - - 170,997 170,997 5247 176244
TEEBERRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 11(a) - - - - - - (19,998) (19,998 - (19,998)
BNV#BEREZ 2 Dividends paid to minority
&E interests - - - - - - - - (4761) (4,767)
RZZENF
=A=t-H At 31 March 2008 76,916 133,383 4,646 22,638 703 21,708 578,571 838,565 21,612 860,177
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20 BA KR REE @) 29 Capital and reserves (continued)
(b) ZE A= (b) The Company
R&
(i RE  RGEE BERE RARE REEH a8
Capital
Share Share  redemption Capital  Retained
Note capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
RZELT/ ENF—A At 1 April 2006 77,342 133,383 4220 23092 321422 559,459
BRERT Lapse of share options 27 - - - (85) 8 -
RirmE Purchase of own shares
-B&EE - par value paid (426) - - - - (426)
-BHRE - premium paid - . - - B0 (02
-BhHE - fransfer between reserves - - 426 - (426) -
BEFECIERS Dividends approved in respect
of the previous year 11() - - - - (49,499) (49,499
AEREN Proft for the year 10 - - - - 148314 148314
REREHERS Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 11() - - - - (19998 (19,99
RZEE+F=A=1-H At 31 March 2007 76,916 133,383 4,646 23007 394876 632,828
RZEZLENF-A At 1 April 2007 76,916 133,383 4,646 23007 394876 632,828
BRERT Lapse of share options 27 - - - (369) 369 -
BEFECIERS Dividends approved n respect
of the previous year 1(b) - - - - (49226)  (49,226)
AEREA Profit for the year 10 - - - - 139953 139,953
REREERRE Dividends declared in respect
of the current year 11(a) - - - - (19,998 (19,99
RZFE/\F=A=1-H At 31 March 2008 76,916 133,383 4,646 22,638 465974 708,557
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20 AR @B (@) 29 Capital and reserves (continued)
(c) EB&X (c) Share capital
() ZEEEKBBEITERAR ()  Authorised and issued share capital
2008 2007
[ R
No. of No. of
shares shares
(000) $000 (000) $'000
EERA Authorised:
BREE0.LOTLE®ME  Ordinary shares of $0.50 each 200,000 100,000 200,000 100,000
LZER - BRTR Ordinary shares, issued and
R fully paid:
NP A—H At 1 April 153,832 76,916 154,685 77,342
P47 20 85 (i) Purchase of own shares (i) - - (853) (426)
R=B=+—H At 31 March 153,832 76,916 153,832 76,916
TR ABREKET The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
RERKE  BEHA dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
—REE—ZEEARAE to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All
ELEEREE -FIBELESE ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
IR AR FGBEESR Company’s residual assets.
ERFE#EZ -
(i) Az 1H = (i)  Purchase of own shares
(22T +F=A=F During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Company
—HIEFE » KAR)EH repurchased its own ordinary shares on the Stock
REBOELT®ER  F15 Exchange as follows:
U N
EERE SRIXTz BRITZ Rz
2 gE| BaE% BIEE®R BER
Number of Highest Lowest Aggregate
shares price paid price paid price
repurchased per share per share paid
£ /A Month/year $ $ $'000
“EFETRF+—F  November 2006 853,000 6.50 6.19 5,448
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29 RAR % ()
(c) B* (&)

B fp = BE (%)

EIERMDE Tl A2
Al B BITRATE &It
£ 2 Bk ™A A E Y
oo IRIEE B (A BHEH)
FAHIE - —EHEERLE
T $ 0% 17 T {5 426,0007T 2
CHENRBAMNERZ
BRAERFEE - HBERG
B 2 5 2 )& {8 5,022,0007T
EERBEMMEG -

REE B RE B R RITE
2 BB P 2 1R

BEBREZHEBANBE
BRABALA &R
- EBREZESZHF
BRI B 5 R M FE 6 27
I8 o

(d) HEZMERFZ

P 7 g 18 K P AN B (B 1+ 18

P 17 )4 18 R B A7 B (o feh
WA BIREBERE(ARE
151) 55 48B1& K 5 49H 1K FE
A e

P 7S {8

BAREEREREMNESE
1) (i) 2 P 8 9h P HE A5F RER
MZBTBRRERERT
AAREEZERSKMAA
RITEZBREHRE QF
BfE-

29 Capital and reserves (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

)

Exercise period
16 February 2005 to
15 February 2015

Purchase of own shares (continued)

The repurchased shares were cancelled and
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company
was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.
Pursuant to section 49H of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, an amount equivalent to the par value of
the shares cancelled of $426,000 was transferred from
retained profits to the capital redemption reserve. The
premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of
$5,022,000 was charged to retained profits.

Terms of unexpired and unexercised share options at
balance sheet date

2008 2007

1TEE BE 28
Exercise price Number Number
$12.1 11,791,000 11,983,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of these
options are set out in note 27 to the financial
statements.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

0

(i

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account and the
capital redemption reserve is governed by sections 48B
and 49H respectively of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payments in note 1(q)(ii).



Bt 7% 3R R B &

Notes to the Financial Statements

(B 5B A5 98 - 15 L% # 51| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

29 BRAR#fF (|
(d) ffE=ERAR ()

(e)

(f)

(i) HNEE %

SMERBREITEEIE
BB REMELEZRAE
PE S ERR o i BARE M
R IEMEZ &R
BRI o

vy BEE R ZBRERHE

45 7 52 B 4 5 22 2 )
5 T AR A B 2 1 2 BB R
EhE A -

RS IR GE
R-_ZTEZENF=A=+—H -
AR AR TFEZKRRE 2
1 1% 48 %8 /5 465,974,0007T (-
T4 : 394,876,0007T) ° R4
HH%  ESFEZRBERPRKR
BET@ElkEelRan (===t
F o EEBRER320) KR
BEBEBERERIOML(ZEE £
FERREREW - 2RE
49,226,000 (ZEE+F -
49,226,000t ) K 46,150,0007T
ZETEF T o ZER

ERGEEERAERSAE -

BAEH
AEEEREAZETERRER
REAEBEEAHEEZFEL
SEERKE  tmEBHERER
KRR 2 E o MR EE
ARZAERAETRE @ #
BRBIRERE ® KA A
mAAEEAENS -

AREEBES LT Hme kEE
HEXRRE UEEBESKRE
EHRFBERTAEREESEER
KB R A B AR S 2R 2 4F
BEREZEARGFE  XHE
EREERRZBICHERRE
tEHAE -

29 Capital and reserves (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(e)

(f)

(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in note 1(u).

(iv) Associate’s share option reserve

Represents the Group’s share of an associate’s share
option reserve, which arose on the granting of share
options.

Distributability of reserves

At 31 March 2008, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was $465,974,000 (2007: $394,876,000). After
the balance sheet date the directors proposed a final
dividend of 32 cents per ordinary share (2007: 32 cents per
ordinary share) and a special dividend of 30 cents per
ordinary share (2007: Nil cents per ordinary share),
amounting to $49,226,000 (2007: $49,226,000) and
$46,150,000 (2007: $Nil), respectively. These dividends have
not been recognised as liabilities at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.
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TEH

EXEE (F)

RBITERED  AKEIZE
FREEEHEEALRERA
EARRBE - -RUME  AKE
HEHFERTERBES (B
FHRERREE AR BN R
Ko B FE AN 5R) D03 R A+ IR ik
B REASRRGFEY - &
HEBEXRBIEM A Em a0
FRFABEREER -

RZZBTZNF  AEERAZ
TETLF2RE  ARFEHE
KFZEHFREEHEERN
bR REFHABRZLE
AEBEAREEHRN TRRZ
RESBIELAR - BITHK
- MRREEER - (FHH
BEREXHEEEAMDE
& o

R—EENFR-_FTLE=
A=+ - RAZEHFEELH
BEARLERMT -

Current liabilities:

29 Capital and reserves (continued)

(f)

- Trade and other payables
- Bank loans and overdrafts

Non-current liabilities:

- Bank loans
Total debt

Add: Proposed dividends

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Total equity

Less: Proposed dividends

Adjusted capital

Net debt-to-adjusted

capital ratio

ARBREAEMMERRGT
OB B ARRERSY o

B 7% 3R & MY &
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20 BA KR REE @)

(f)

R

MENBE :

—ERERREMENR

- BAERRER

FRBEE

—H7E

EISB8%E

m: \RRE

B HERASEED

BRFE

EREH

A BRRS

RABER

B FRHLHE

- ¥NsAES

Capital management (continued)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio.
For this purpose the Group defines net debt as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings and trade and
other payables) plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash
and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all
components of equity less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During 2008, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2007, was to maintain a relatively low net debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 March 2008 and
2007 was as follows:

b | VNG|
The Group The Company
PzE 2008 2007 2008 2007
Note $°000 $000 $°000 $'000
24 188,640 179,415 7,640 11,583
25 38,942 56,499 = >
227,582 235914 7,640 11,583
25 6,406 49,038 - =
233,988 284,952 7,640 11,583
11(a) 95,376 49,226 95,376 49,226
23 (276,633)  (193,782)  (89,705) (83,393
52,731 140,396 13,311 (22,584)
860,177 747,254 703,557 632,828
11(a) (95,376)  (49,226)  (95,376)  (49,226)
764,801 698,028 608,181 583,602
6.89% 20.11% 2.19% N/A

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject
to externally imposed capital requirements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

30 Financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group is also
exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity investments in
other entities and movements in its own equity share price. These
risks are limited by the Group’s financial management policies
and practices described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, listed debt securities and deposits with
banks and other financial institutions. Management has a
credit policy in place and exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 days to 90 days from the date
of billing.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk
of the industry and country in which customers operate also
has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

Investments are normally only in liquid securities quoted on
a recognised stock exchange, except where entered into
for long term strategic purposes. Given their high credit
standing, management does not expect any investment
counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

Investments in held-to-maturity securities and placement of
bank deposits are normally with counterparties that have
sound credit ratings. Therefore, management does not
expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.
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30 Financial instruments (continued)

(@)

(b)
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(a)

=] BR
(b)
5

Credit risk (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any
impairment allowance. Except for the financial guarantees given
by the Group as set out in note 32, the Group does not provide
any other guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk
in respect of these financial guarantees at the balance sheet
date is disclosed in note 32.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 22.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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30 B T A (@) 30 Financial instruments (continued)

(b) “EBEZER (&) (b) Liquidity risk (continued)
TRFINAREEBRARAZIE The following table details the remaining contractual
MEVBBERTEVB AR maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s and the
REFB 2 FAREHENESHA - Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
ERAZEADNIEEHRFTIEIR financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
ene (BREERAEGHNMNEGFE undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
Z M BN - HWaEE - Al computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
REERER Z2AEGTE) AR rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date
AEBRARBAIEANRZ the Group and the Company can be required to pay:

TP HHTE -
& The Group
&%
AR
ReRE —£R —F#&E ME#E
HREE k] HRBEA MER 1FRA
More than
Total More than 2 years
contractual Within 1 1 year but but less
Carrying undiscounted year or on less than than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000 $°000 $000 $000 $'000

HAER  Bankloans 25259 102,146  (26,403) (106,588)  (19,546) (65072)  (2493) (13,768)  (4,364) (37,748
ERNEE Bills payable 1,995 7345 (1,995)  (7,345) (1,995  (7,349) - - - -
EMEZR  Creditors and

JEstEA  accrued charges 179,586 163,185  (179,586) (163,185) (179,550) (162,883) (36) (289) - (17)
EfBE  Amountsdueto

NG5S related companies 705 83885 (7,059 (8,389) (7,059 (8,889) - - - -
BOBEX  Bank overdrafts 20,089 3391 (20,089 (3391  (20,089) (3,391 - - - -

233,988 284952  (235132) (289,394) (228,239) (237,576)  (2,529) (14,003  (4,364) (37,765)

X A 7 The Company
=E
RFTR
HeRg —FR
BREE wmE HIREH
Total
contractual Within 1
Carrying undiscounted year or on
amount cash flow demand

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 $000 $000 $000  $000  $000

APES: Bills payable 1,995 7,345  (1,995) (7,345) (1,995) (7,345)
JEfTBRF % EZtE A Creditors and accrued charges 5,645 4238 (5,645) (4,238) (5,645) (4,238)

7,640 11,583  (7,640) (11,583) (7,640) (11,583)
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30 Financial instruments (continued)

(c)

Variable rate borrowings

Bank overdrafts

Fixed rate borrowings:

Total borrowings

Bt 3% 3R} & M EE
Notes to the Financial Statements
(B ZEFT1E5N - 15 L E B 51 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
30 %I A @)
(c)
EREEE :
RITEX
IRITER Bank loans
BEREEE :
IRITE Bank loans .
EEHE

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and
fair value interest rate risk respectively. The Group monitors
the level of its fixed rate and variable rate borrowings and
manages the contractual terms of the interest-bearing
financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s interest rate profile
as monitored by management is set out below.

(i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate profile of

the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings (as defined
above) at the balance sheet date.

The Group

2008 2007

BEBEAE% #azE EEME% 4=
Effective Effective

interest rate Total interest rate Total
% $°000 % $'000
5.03 20,089 5.03 3,391
7.23 16,650 6.17 93,176
36,739 96,567
4.60 8,609 4.60 8,970
45,348 105,537
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30 Financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(i

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2008, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease/
increase the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits
by approximately $303,098 (2007: $796,677).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk in existence at that date.
The 100 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible
change in interest rates over the period until the next
annual balance sheet date. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2007.

(d) Foreign currency risk

(0

Exposure to currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily United States dollars (“USD”), Euros,
Pounds Sterling, Renminbi and Macau Pataca (“MOP”).

Given that the USD and MOP is pegged to HKD,
management does not expect any significant
movements in the USD/HKD and MOP/HKD exchange
rates and considers the exposure to foreign currency
risk in relation to the USD and MOP to be low. However,
management acknowledges that it is exposed to
fluctuations in the exchange rate for the other
currencies.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan or,
in the case of Group entities whose functional currency
is HKD, in either HKD or USD. Given this, management
does not expect that there will be any significant
currency risk associated with the Group’s borrowings.

2007/08 Annual Report ] ]4
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30 T B (@)
(d) $rEmB ()

() HAFZIHINERE (&)
TRFINRNEBRARQF]
REEH Ffr??Kx,Zﬁl\’ﬁgx
|3M ZEINER R
BERBIERREE _JZ a
1ELA$ CIRZEER=E 3P
ZEBFEMES -
158 The Group
UGBS REMENE  Trade and other receivables
ReRBEEEN Cash and cash equivalents
ERERREMERNT  Trade and other payables
BERAERR Loan 10 associates and
Rt HIE accrued inferest
RAIERREY Bank loans and overdrafts
R Net exposure arising from
BERAR recognised assets and
iy =2 liabilties
SEEY Hong Kong dollar
equivalent
O The Company
EUETREMER  Trade and other receivables
ReRBLEEN Cash and cash equivalents
ERERREMERNT  Trade and other payables
BENAERR Loan to associates and
fExH e accrued interest
B Net exposure arising from
BEREE recognised assets and
Filk e libilties
SEA% Hong Kong dollar equivalent

BIS! -007/08 “ 3

30 Financial instruments (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

()  Exposure to currency risk (continued)
The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the Company’s
functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
EY B 3 AR TSk
United
States Pounds Macau
Dollars Euros Sterling Renminbi Pataca
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
$000 $000  $000 $000 $000  $000  $000  $000  $000  $000
1,256 1372 il - - - 5 - - -
692 5697 5 4 3 2 6366 37438 2448 475
(382) (1,040 (580)  (989) (4 (87) (11,140) (16,754) - -
4346 5344 - - - - - - - -
- (6750 - - - - - - - -
5912 4623 (564)  (949) (474) (85 (4769 (13011) 2448 475
46,021 36,115 (6,943) (9897)  (7,347)  (1318) (5,208 (13,154) 2,448 475
- 20 - - - - - L . 5
210 5284 - - - 2 - - - -
(23) (37) (140)  (681) - - - - - -
4346 5344 - - - - - - - -
4593 10,611 (140)  (681) - 2 - - - -
3,754 82902 (1,780)  (7,110) - 24 - - - -




Bt 7% 3R R B &

Notes to the Financial Statements
(B 5B A5 98 - 15 L% # 51| /R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

30 B T A (@) 30 Financial instruments (continued)
(d) sh#E B (48) (d) Foreign currency risk (continued)
(ii) RE DI (i)  Sensitivity analysis

TRINREEBRARF The following table indicates the approximate change
ZBhREERN (RREB % in the Group’s and the Company’s profit after tax (and
) ARGEEREX ZAEE retained profits) in response to reasonably possible

AggE (REERAR changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the
ATt B AT EARE M) Group and the Company has significant exposure at
MEE LSS - the balance sheet date.

2008 2007
B  EHRBig R HBRBIE

R BARBRE A EFIRIRE
(TR BAzE (TR &Mz 2
Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit after (decrease) profit after

in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rates profits rates profits
% $000 % $000
rEE The Group
BT Euros 5 (286) 5 (408)
(5) 286 (5) 408
£ Pounds Sterling 5 (303) 5 (54)
) 303 5) 54
/NS Renminbi 5 (218) 5 (543)
(5) 218 5) 543
ARATE The Company
BT Euros 5 (71) 5 (293)
(5) 71 5) 293
RS D AT Th R AR BE R The sensttivity analysis has been determined assuming
FRAEERDKELE I that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
EEARAEESERR at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
ZBAFEARZ ZE®ER T each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk in
BrE - UWEKEBRE&RMEEM existence at that date, and that all other variables, in
BH(LEEMNR)#FT particular interest rates, remain constant.
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30 Financial instruments (continued)

MW EME
Notes to the Financial Statements
(B ZEFT1E5N - 15 L E B 51 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
30 &I A (&)

(d)

B E 4
JH
e 4
(e)
a

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
balance sheet date. In this respect, it is assumed that
the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and
the United States dollar would be materially unaffected
by any changes in movement in value of the United
States dollar against other currencies. Results of the
analysis as presented in the above table represent an
aggregation of the effects on each of the Group entities’
profit after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date
for presentation purposes. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2007.

(e) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from
listed equity investments classified as trading securities (see
note 20).

Certain of the Group’s listed investments are listed on the
Stock Exchange and are included in the Hang Seng Index.
Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based on daily
monitoring of the performance of individual securities
compared to that of the Index and other industry indicators,
as well as the Group’s liquidity needs. The portfolio is
diversified in terms of industry distribution, in accordance
with the limits set by the Group.

All of the Group’s unquoted investments are held for long
term strategic purposes. Their performance is assessed at
least bi-annually with reference to the performance of similar
listed entities and other information available to the Group,
together with an assessment of their relevance to the Group’s
long term strategic plans.
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(e) KEmRE (&)
TRIVRAS B 2 B 1R 7
(RERB@H ARNEEBRAH
BmEg (R LEmREMS) 2
BEAREEE (N EERART]
AT B FEZEARR) ME
EZBOES -

RE
BRLEmREZ Stock market index
RiiEE in respect of listed
investments:
1A TEER Hang Seng Index
MHTETT NASDAQ
REIEE Composite
Index

BREIMDIBREDERZ
EEMEEINEEACKER
£ YERARZBEMARZ
BERR : FREANEERAR
REZAFEEBREBTE
BERkmERCEEEmEE
23 AU HMEEKGER
TE - PAEHIEEERE
ETEFEAERLBNERE
PR mERcAEAEES L
Al RN NIRE—_TT L
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30 Financial instruments (continued)

(e) Equity price risk (continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit after tax (and retained profits) in response to
reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock market
index (for listed investments) to which the Group and the
Company have significant exposure at the balance sheet
date.

The Group

2008 2007

HHEER HERBK ARRR HEHE
#giEM,/ BARRE  FEENS  EARRR

(B4) il a2 Rd) O BAzTE
Effect Effect

Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit
(decrease) in after tax  (decrease) in after tax
the relevant and the relevant and
risk retained risk retained
variable profits variable profits
$000 $000

5% 106 5% 164

(5)% (106) 5)% (164)

5% 115 - -

(5)% (115) - -

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the reasonably possible changes in the stock market index
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at
that date. It is also assumed that the fair values of the Group’s
equity investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant stock market index
and that all other variables remain constant. The stated
changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in the relevant stock market index over
the period until the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.
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30 Financial instruments (continued)

(f)  Fair values

(9)

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially
different from their fair values as at 31 March 2008 and 2007
except as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements.

Estimation of fair values

The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial
instruments set out in notes 19, 20 and 32(a).

0

(i)

)

Bt 3% 3R} & M EE
Notes to the Financial Statements
(B ZEFT1E5N - 15 L E B 51 7R~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
30 %I A @)
(f)
(9)

Securities

Fair value is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date without any deduction for
transaction costs.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The fair value is estimated as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates
for similar financial instruments.

Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information
can be made.
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31 FEE 31 Commitments
a R-ZFEZENF=HF=+—H" (a) At 31 March 2008, the total future minimum lease
RETUHBKRZEEHEEAR payments under non-cancellable operating leases are
BEMNZEEHETHELEE payable as follows:
/(1 N
2008 2007
L/ ES Hity LZJES Efth
Properties Other  Properties Other
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000
AEE The Group
—FR Within 1 year 115,507 1,733 98,915 138
—FRERFR After 1 year but within 5 years 92,731 4,340 73,827 -
AFiE After 5 years 13,978 - 29,296 -
222,216 6,073 202,038 138
2008 2007
L/ ES IES
Properties Properties
$°000 $'000
b NC| The Company
—FR Within 1 year 3,840 3,888
—FRERFA After 1 year but within 5 years 7,680 -
11,520 3,888

BERARBREEERAZ LN
EEFRERGEHERBEZL
WeBREELHHENRMES
1438 o

BRZEHEEIN  NEERBR
BRREHNEREZMERBRA
EREZABEA - EEHE—
RO RB|—ZE=F F¥HA
BEZEINHMAKESR BN
FrEBRFEAENRAE - &1
wrEHEHTREHAESR -

FREFTRUBER 2 WELE
HEAARIANES  BIES
MEAMBEECEREE 2
F - ZARAMEBALKAZ
12%E29% (ZEZLF : 12%
E31%) Ug B -

Significant leasing arrangements in respect of land and
buildings classified as being held under finance lease and
land held under operating leases are described in note 14.

Apart from these leases, the Group is the lessee in respect
of a number of properties and office equipment held under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period
of one to three years, with an option to renew the lease
upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

Certain non-cancellable operating leases in respect of
properties included above are subject to contingent rent
payments, which are charged in amounts varying from 12%
t0 29% (2007: 12% to 31%) of the monthly gross takings at
the leased premises in excess of the base rents as
determined in the respective lease agreements.
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32 Contingent liabilities

(@)

(b)

B 7% 3R & MY &
Notes to the Financial Statements
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(b)

Guarantees

At 31 March 2008, the Company has issued guarantees to
banks to secure banking facilities of subsidiaries amounting
to $114,670,000 (2007: $87,524,000). The guarantees were
issued by the Company at nil consideration. The transactions
were not at arm’s length, and it is not possible to measure
reliably the fair value of these transactions in accordance
with HKAS 39 had they been at arm’s length. Accordingly,
the guarantees have not been accounted for as financial
liabilities and measured at fair value.

As at the balance sheet date, the directors do not consider
to be probable that a claim will be made against the
Company under any of the guarantees issued. The maximum
liability of the Company at the balance sheet date under the
guarantees issued is the amount of banking facilities drawn
down by the relevant subsidiaries of $39,156,000 (2007:
$47,991,000).

Claims

The Group’s subsidiary in France is the subject of various
claims from certain former employees of the subsidiary
relating to their period of employment with the subsidiary.
Having considered the claims with the Group’s legal counsel,
the management and the Board consider the claims to be
unfounded and the Group’s position to be meritorious. As
such, the Group intends to continue to vigorously defend
the claims. The directors are of the opinion that, in
accordance with paragraph 92 of HKAS 37, “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, it would be
against the interests of the Company to make further
disclosure of the information required by paragraphs 84 to
89 of HKAS 37.
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2008 2007

$°000 $'000
A Purchases of traded products 40,845 39,805
&S 7 Sales of traded products 594 6,840
xRS Rentals payable on properties 3,755 3,906
ERERE Management fees payable 804 804
ERRNEEREE Building management fees payable 312 324
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MEEAHA -

(b) EIYGM Marketing Pte Limited (7%
ARAEBHARAETESEER
BE)ETZRS

& m Sales of traded products
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YGM Marketing Pte Limited 2 1
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Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with and amounts paid to Yangtzekiang
Garment Limited, its subsidiaries and associated companies
(“Yangtzekiang Garment Group”). (Certain directors of the
Company are collectively the controlling shareholders of both
the Yangtzekiang Garment Group and the Group):

The purchases and sales of traded products and rental
transactions were, in the opinion of the directors, carried
out on prices and terms comparable to those offered to or
by independent third parties. The management fees were
charged for administration, business strategy, personnel,
legal and Company secretarial work, accounting and
management services provided. The management fees are
determined annually between the respective parties after
negotiations having regard to the cost of services provided.
Yangtzekiang Garment Group and the Group have not
entered into any management contract in respect of the said
services.

(b) Transactions with YGM Marketing Pte Limited which was
beneficially owned by certain directors of the Company:

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
1,737 3,225

The sales of traded products were, in the opinion of the
directors, carried out on prices and terms comparable to
those offered to independent third party customers. The
relevant directors disposed of their interests in YGM
Marketing Pte Limited in November 2007. The above sales
represents transactions prior to the disposal of interests.
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WERBEHBALIRS (&)

EIREREERBERAR (E
B REMBAR (NEE
ZREE])ETZRHMT (K
RR—REERARFMEAF
ZETEERKHESERZE
EREER) :

(c)

33 Material related party transactions (continued)

Transactions with Hang Ten Group Holdings Limited
(*HTGH”) and its subsidiaries (“HTGH Group”). A director of
the Company and certain directors of a subsidiary of the
Company are both directors and shareholders of HTGH:

2008 2007

$°000 $'000

S E A AR Sale of interest in an associate - z
Interest on loan granted 1,919 1,909

Service fee payable 244 146

Rentals receivable on properties - 124

Rental payable on properties 615 -

HRER
HRERZHE

1231 -007/08 3

() ’

BEREFZHNE

FETRTG &

W EME S

ENYERS
FRN - ARAMEEERSEH
HEBE AR  ERER
Zr (22BN E18@HE)
BEERAMERZIZBRE
BB E = F GRS
ZEBEGHEESE - EEER
& B 0 M st AR 7% 5T S {E 1A
EREH -

(d) £ Efficient Sino Holdings Limited

([ESH)) (—EBARAMEBE A
Al ETEEER AR - %
M A EFFBESH ERER)
EITZRZ0T -
P ESHET 5 R IR R 4 - ESHR
—EENF=ZA=FT—HHRK
2R ® B E R7,799,0007T
—ETEALFBE) B
%o ESHZ Bl R (AR EE
B 2 # % b % T ESHE X)) 7%
BRE®BESHA S B R HE
RAEERNMBEZNHK 2
B B 7k 55 18(a)E )& £ 1918

Waiver of principal loan
Waiver of interest on loan

(d)

During the year, the Company disposed of its interest in an
associate to HTGH Group for a total consideration of $Nil,
see note 18(a).

The rental transactions were, in the opinion of the directors,
carried out at prices and on terms comparable to those
offered to or by independent third parties. HTGH Group has
not entered into any management contract in respect of the
said services.

Transactions with Efficient Sino Holdings Limited (“ESH”).
ESH is a company controlled by certain directors of a
subsidiary of the Company which holds a controlling interest
in ESH:

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
7,799 =

420 422

The principal loan balance due from ESH as at 31 March 2008
of $7,799,000 (2007: $Nil) was waived due to the poor financial
performance of ESH. The other shareholders of ESH, all of
which have granted loans to ESH in proportion to their equity
interests, have also agreed to waive the payment of the principal
loan balance and interest payable thereon by ESH for the current
year, see notes 18(a) and 19.
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BWEARBHALIRS (&)

34

) R—ZZEENF=-A=+—HE
W,/ (FEA) BN R &
I

33 Material related party transactions (continued)

(e) Outstanding balances due from/(to) related companies as
at 31 March 2008:

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
ERNRIHKEER Amounts due to Yangtzekiang
Garment Group (2,790) (8,133)
FEUYGM Marketing Amount due from YGM Marketing
Pte LimitedzX Pte Limited - 444
NP ibe SIETFA Amount due to HTGH Group (387) (318)
FENESHE TR K F B Loan and accrued interest due from ESH - 7,799
FEYCEE R EE Loan and accrued interest due from
ERRFB HTGH Group 33,834 33,954

BLRRE N R RAAR T IR
RERZBANKEE - K
7t % 19(a)78 P % B& 2 & M ESH
MEBEREERE K EF A
BB FHRR S -

f BEIF2EMNBRAZRS
AEEZz2EMBABMRET
FrEWMBRAR L ERMZE
ERRNBHFERHBEZCESE
7O ERGREASKBEH

L& #F

HREA T(REMBREERDE
TRIMETA : BEIR(EBES
BRI FB1RIERT R [ FHRE A
S - BAKE] FTHREF
ERBAE UNAAFEZHES
B ARRN_—_ZFTTELEFERREZ
HEEBINRHRET - BEZT
BB ELFRRMER2BRE -

34

The outstanding balances with related companies are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, except for
the loans and accrued interest due from ESH and HTGH Group,
the repayment terms of which are disclosed in note 19(a).

(f)  Transactions with non-wholly owned subsidiaries:

Sales of traded products by the Group’s wholly-owned
subsidiaries to certain non-wholly owned subsidiaries and
the related year end trade balances have been eliminated
on consolidation.

Comparative figures

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 7, “Financial instruments:
Disclosures”, and the amendment to HKAS 1, “Presentation of
financial statements. Capital disclosures”, certain comparative
figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in disclosures
in the current year and to show separately comparative amounts
in respect of items disclosed for the first time in 2007. Further
details of these developments are disclosed in note 2.
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EEBREYME  BREEE BE
LERELY B ITAE AFEEL
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AR EZZEMFESTEAT :
(a) JFE UL BR = B
MBEBRBREWREREE
B E A RE  ZEEER
BEHEGEAIERE]  MRES
B geRE(EESFERD)
FO6% [EERMEIELRER -
FEWEER v BREEE & H1E S
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EEREHREENAT - BUKE
Rz ESBREREUE
EE 2 T 35 Bl 3 K ¥ TE 5T R 2R 3R
EmEELTR - AEEEA
FMBERAZERNETEBITK
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REB2EREFEZHW -
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35 Accounting estimates and judgements

Notes 14(c), 15, 27 and 30 contain information about the
assumptions and their risk factors relating to fair value of
investment property, intangible assets, share options granted and
financial instruments respectively. Other key areas of estimation
uncertainty are as follows:

(a) Impairment of trade receivables

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of trade
receivables may not be recoverable, the assets may be
considered “impaired” and an impairment loss may be
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36, “Impairment of
assets”. The carrying amounts of trade receivables are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying
amounts. The recoverable amount of trade receivables is
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return of similar assets. The Group uses all
readily available information in determining an amount that
is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount.

(b) Write down of inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of, expected future saleability of goods and
management experience and judgement. Based on this
review, a write down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories decline below their estimated
net realisable value. Due to changes in customers’
preferences, actual saleability of goods may be different from
estimation and the profit and loss account in future
accounting periods could be affected by differences in this
estimation.

(c) Deferred tax assets - future benefit of tax losses

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 1(r), the Group has recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of cumulative tax losses as at the year end based
on management’s assessment that it is probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will
be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
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36 Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2008

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and
interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2008 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s and the Company’s
results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the following developments may result in new or
amended disclosures in the financial statements:

ERHTSI Effective for
RHNEH accounting periods
BRNEREE beginning on or after
SENE-A-H  Reviscd HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements 1 January 2009
AR Revised HKAS 28 Borrowing costs 1 January 2009

A-H  HKFRSS Operating segments 1 January 2009
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Principal Subsidiaries

TRENHBAKENEE  EEXA
BEEFENMNBRAREN -KREH
Sh - IR AERDERNY ST BK

BUERRYR/IENBAR (EERME
%’1()15) YEEREENMBHRREA

FEHWE L B
R=ZFZFNF=H=+—H At 31 March 2008
0Bt

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined under note 1(c) and
have been consolidated into the Group financial statements.

/E\ 8/

L

ERERRAT

EEE (A RO

RIABERAA

YGM Fashion Limited

BEERAT

RIERERAT

YoM Marketing (Macau)
Limted

YoM Clothing (Overseas)
Limited

RIFRGZIERAT

AT IEAARAT

ATIAZEROT

ze(LEAEARAT

Michel René Enterpriss
Limited

Luk Hop Garments
Limted #

Chenza Ridge Limited #

Squash Internafional
Limited #

W24 -007/08 = 3

#haL/
HIR
Name of company flgny
MichelRené Limie B
Guy Laroche (Ching Limied (35
Vo Warketng Limed i
YGM Fashion e B
Bentwood Limited (Y3
M Cltrng Linfed (35
M Matketing Macau) 1
Limted
YoM Cloting (Overseas) " %BRRES
Limited
YOM Clothing Dongguan) 2R
Linfed AiE
Guangghou Yongizekeng " BEAR
Trading Company Linited £
YGM Trading Company REAR
Linied AfE
VG Mergtng (Shenghe) ~~ * #EAR
Company Limited £
Michel René Enterprises~~ *RERLHE
Limited
Luk Hop Garments &t
Limited #
Cherza Ridge Limted # ik
Squash Interationel it
Limited #

frRRERAE
Percentage of ownership interest
ERTRERRE/ A% BALE
ifkzgn  EBER BE AKRAE
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued Groups  Held by 58
establishment and paid up / effective the  Heldbya
and operation egisteredcapital ~ interest  Company  subsidlay ~ EEEH  Principal actvity
Hong Kong HKS1,000,000 100 10 - RIHER  Gamentwholssang
55 adretng
Hong Kong 32,000,000 100 10 - BFBER  Gamentwholesang
S5 andretaling
Hong Kong HS2 10 10 - HFHER  Gament wholsaing
55 admetng
Hong Kang 2 10 100 - BFBER  Gamentwholesaing
FE  andretaling
Hong Kong HK$500,000 100 0 - ARHE  Gament whlesaing
Hong Kong HKS200 100 100 - AR Gament whdeseing
Macay MOP100,000 100 100 - AKEE  Gament ealing
** Bifish Virgin Il USs2 10 100 - AKEE  Gament mantfectuing
* The People’s HKS25,900,000 10 - 100 AREE  Gament manuactuing
Republic of China
4 The Peoples RIB500,000 10 - 00 HKKER  Gamentwholesaing
Repuol of Chine 25 wdretdlng
4 The Peqple’ (81,000,000 10 - 0 HFEEER  Gament whdesaing
Republc of China 55 andrealig
4 The Peoples US5,000,000 10 - 00 HEKER  Gamentwholesaing
Renuol of Chine £ wdretdng
** Bifh Virgin IS US§50,000 8 ) - HPUER  Gamentwholesaing
EE wdretalng
Hong Kong HK$200 10 100 - WERE  Property imvestment
*HKS1,000 100 10 -
Hong Kang K320 10 100 - MERE  Property mvestment
*HK$0 100 100 -
Hong Kang it 10 100 - MERE  Property iiestment



..igwgaa
Principal Subsidiaries
RZ—ZZT)\#=H=+— A At 31 March 2008

G LI ERES

Percentage of ownership interest

ERTRERRE/ 482 AL
ifiksEs  ERER §E HKELR
$RAL/  Ploeotincomoration/  Patcularsofissued  Group’s  Held by k&
BIR  establishment and paid up / effective the  Heldbya
W2 Name of company SE8Y  and operation tegistered capital inerest  Company  subsidiary ~~ EEEE  Principal actity
s Itematone Hranis rtematone E5 Hongkong HK$2 100 100 - MERE  Proerty invesiment
Limied # Limited # *HK$100,000 100 100 -
RIREARAT 4 Far ast Gate Limfet # BE  HongkKong HKS5 300,000 g g - NERE  Popertyimesiment
FERERAA 1 Paahood Limfed 4 B2 Hogkong HKS6,000 i) i) - MERE  Popertyinesiment
Trothy Company Limited # Trothy Company Limited # B Hongkong HK$10000 10 100 - MERE  Property ivestment
M Printng . Gl Pritng . RERTBE  Bilh Vighn snds st 10 10 - FEAR Ivestment holding
RERALOARLA 4 Hong Kong Securty B2 Hogkong HKS2 100 10 - FEER  hvestment holding
Systems Limited #
Bz IRERAR 4 Hong Kong Securty BE  HongHong HS10,000 10 - 0 DeREE  Provision of securty
Printing Limie # AR pining and generel
business forms printing
Sociéts Guy Laroche Socié Guy Laroche A8 Fravce EUR1, 299,000 10 - W0 EERET  Tedemak ownership nd
FEEEER  Toensing,and gament
ARBE  wholsaing
YGM Studio Limteg G Studio Limitad BE  HongHong HK321.060.000 10 - 10 FEAR Ivestment holding
* HK$46,800,000 100 - 100
YGM Consorum Limied G Consortum Limite F%  HongKong HKS2 100 10 - FEAR  Investment hlding
OL Europa SA # GL Europa SA. # JE  Begim ELRB2000 100 - 0 KEBR  ivestment odng

FTE BB ATIRA R BRI M S MAA - BLAT S BRI -

N 7% 5% EIRERRIEAR -

> RERFEELR -

All the issued share capital represents ordinary shares or registered capital except where noted by:
b Represent 5% non-voting deferred shares.

- Represent non-voting preference shares.

BEAN » AR

***  YGM Clothing (Overseas) Limited 7 BIAT & %75 -

e AR SR ) Michel René Enterprises Limited ©

***** b E R R RIREH EDEGIE M EEE -

In addition, the following represents:

***  YGM Clothing (Overseas) Limited operates in the PRC.
***  Michel René Enterprises Limited operates in Taiwan.

***** These are entities established under the laws of the PRC.

# EYHREFHSHMEFAEZNRA - ZEELCEFTASHMEBAER L MBANYBEREARMEEERRRQLEEEIMEBH RS
4BEEX16.77% K 10.87% °

# Companies not audited by KPMG. The financial statements of the subsidiaries not audited by KPMG reflect total net assets and total turnover
constituting approximately 16.77% and 10.87% respectively of the related consolidated totals.
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B N\ =
ETFEBHRE LA
Principal Associates
RZZFEZFE/NF=H=+1—H at 31 March 2008
TREJNHEAEENEESEERE
FEMERNFEAR
Form of
EHRE  business

LD Name of associate % stctre
EREER Hang Ten Group AT hooporated
ERDT Holdings Limieg®

Hang Ten BV) Hang Ten (BV) ML Ioororated
16 e AT Icororated
Hang Ten Enterprises Hang Ten Enterprises HHAL Incomorated
Limied Limited

RIERRR Vangtze Apoarel Taan BB Incorported
RO Entepise Linited

Hng TenPhls, Com~ HangTenPhis, Coro EEMECL  Incorporated
Hang Ten Enterprises ~Hang Ten Enterprises AL Incomorated
Pl Pl

Hang TenKoreaCorp. — Hang TenKoreaCorp.—— EEMACL  Incorporated
Hang Teng Enterpises ~ Hang Teng Enterprises.—— EEACE Incorporated
S B MSth B

ILC Trademerk ILC Trademark AL hooporated
Corporafion Corporaton

ILC (Hungany Limted ~ ILC (Hungay] Limted &ML~ Incorporated
HTIL Corporaion, BY. ~ HTIL Corporation, BY. ~~ #EMELY  Incorporated
Inemational Licensing — Inematonal Lioensing ~~ FEMELY  Incorporated
(Calfornig) Corp (Calfornia) Corp

HTEL (HongKong) ~~ HTEL (Hong Kong| ERAL  Incorporated
Limied Limited

ILC (Cyprus) Limted~ ILC (Cyprus] Limited HRAT  Incoporated
Precse DeliaLimier ~ Precse Dellalimted ~~ #8ELT  Incorporated

Place of
incorporation

Bermuda

Biitsh Virgin
Islands
Biiish Virgn
Islands
Biitish Virgin
Islands

Taiwan

2 Philppines

Singapore

Korea

Welaysia

Biitsh Virgin
Islands

Hungary
The Netherlands
United States

of America
Hong Kong

Gyorus

Hong Kong

BRARARRA

Particulars
ofissued and
paid up capital
HK398,225,000
USS103,621
U38639,830

850,000

NT$100,000,000

PHP30,000,000

SGD1,000,000

KR30,000,000

AIMB00,000

US850,000

US36.400
NLG40,000
US$10,000

HKS2,000,000
Gypriot pounds

1,000
St

falkanz

Proportion of ownership interest

1582
ERER
Group’s
effective
interest
048
048
048

04

04

04

04

04

04
04
04

04

04

04

)9
k&
Held by
the
Company

204

=
S
i

=

=t

i :
&894 OWF &8 OFF

=

=t = >t = >t
== il

32 O S5 DR 52 D

Far
Ees

HERRR
HERRR

AERR
SRRR
AREE

ek

The following list contains only the particulars of associates, which
principally affected the results or assets of the Group:

Principal activity

Investment holoing

Investment holoing

Investment holding

Ivestment holding
and wholesal of
apparel

Retal and wholeszle
of apparel

Retall and wholesale
of apparel

Retall and wholgsale
of apparel

Retal and wholesale
of apparel

Retal and wholesale
of apparel

Trademark ownership
and censing

Trademark licensing
Trademark licensing

Trademark licensing
and management

Retal and wholesale
of apparel

Investment holoing

Investment holoing



ok

ok

LLDEEY
HTEL (Macau) Limted

HTIL Holcings
Gomoration N.V.

Hang Ten (Phik|
Holdings Gororation

Eficient Sino Holdings
Limied

Heng Ten (Ching)
Group Limted

[BREES
BRAR

Ohil Investment
Limfed

R
ERAa

Name of associate

HTEL (Macau) Limited

HTIL Holdings
Comoration NV,

Hang Ten (Phi)
Holoings Gorporation

Eficient Sino Holdings
Limied

Hang Ten (Ching)
Group Limited

Changmao Trading
Limfeg™

Guangzhou Hang Ten
Trading Limited™

Onil Investment
Limited

Hunan San Jiu Nankal
Phamaceutical
Company Limited™

Form of
husiness
structure
Incorporated
Incorporated
Incorporated
Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

Incorporated

FEAR
fna

FEAR
knm

RERLES

FEAR
AR

Place of
incorporation

Macau

Netherlands
Aniles
Biitsh Virgin
Islands
Biiish Virgin
Islands
Biitsh Virgin
Islands
The People’s

Repubic of
China

The People’s
Reoubl of
China

Bitish Virgin
Islands
The People’s

Repubic of
China

BEARARRR
Particulars

of issued and

paid up capital
10P25,000
US86,000
U5830,000
035100

US$20,000

RB500,000

RB500,000

USSt00

RIMBY,390,000

BRIA [+ SREERAE RINBE AT LAV R RSN - A LRI ETARER -

All of the above are unlisted corporate entities except for where noted by

ZERRRRETBAEEM HE -

These are entities established under the laws of the PRC.

it 13-

Proportion of ownership interest

31 PV V¥

EREZ 2

Group’s Held by

ffective the

interest Company

2048 -

2048 -

048 -

% %

048 -

04 -

048 -

2 2

2 -

 EEHEAA
Principal Associates
RZ=ZZFZE)\F = H=+—~H at 31 March 2008

TEERLE
O

*, which is a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Retall and wholesale
0f apparel

Investment holoing

Ivestment holoing

Investment holdng

Investment holdng

Retall and wholesdle
of apparel

Retall and wholesdle
of apparel

Investment holoing

Manufacturing and
dlstribution of
Chiness
phamaceutica
oroducts




LhFEBE

Five Year Summary

(A 3% # 21| 75~ Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

45 Results

BER Turnover

RN Profit from operations

Txéf%% Valuation gain on

fHEkRE investment properties

BB Finance costs

FEIEBEE AR Share of profits less

mﬂﬁ)@ﬂa losses of associates

B Non-operating income/

(%) %% (expense), net

B AT S A Profit before taxation

FE%t Income tax

RERRM Profit for the year

B Attributable to:

ANNFEZMEE  Equity shareholders of

the Company

PR ER Minority interests

REE R Profit for the year

EEREE Assets and liabilities

EE&E Fixed assets

BVEE Intangible assets

HEEER Lease premium

NS Interest in associates

Hih I EE Other financial assets

EEFHIBEE Deferred tax assets

REEEFE Net current assets

FRBEE Non-current liabilities

BEEFE Net assets

BREA Earnings per share

EAR Basic

i3 Diluted

BEERE Dividend per share

AFEMENT :

(1) BE-_ZTTREMA—A#E ZK%I?%??%(@S%WH%
WEXER]) FEO [REMF - BB BBRERN
EHEHER - BREZBFRE  ASEHERZSE
BRIEZAFEEASE  THREZRANEXRFKES
HRAEZEM - REBMBEWER L EHER -
BRETTNFHA-—B Y EBRE  WHAY
ZBZHVEREENAE -

©) RBEFE  ERER /£E$¥Z$§l§15§ﬁs
RAIBIE D AREGEERAN  EAXEEMBHR
2B - mH-_TETHFNMA—HE  REHFLEE
TEREIRcERES  AEEEREZ2 A
WHEEBASERBABEA  BEBESEEE
ZEEBERATRE  MARKEBHERAMER
2EBEGEBERP  ZESEREHOBYER - =
TTRAFZAFENZHEFTREBEESH 2T Z Gt BE
2R -

3) BE-TTRFMNA—BE  RREEG(EBEHEL)

FAOH [REYE I R(EAREARE) F 215 —
(e ® — B EM TR ERE]  AEBER
ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁ%%&ﬁkfREZAfﬁﬁﬁ """"" 28) 2 & 5t
R RBZFEAZBERI  BBHDEWRER
:%;ﬁﬁizmﬁfﬁz%li*ﬁﬁi@@ﬁ‘zﬁﬁzﬁéﬁﬂz
KR -

B3N -007/08 3

1,3

2,3

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
$'000 $000 $°000 $000 $000
727,735 958,606 1,032,188 1,022,818 1,110,115
108,330 140,456 144,699 101,571 102,515
- 6,900 17,500 18,600 13,400
(1,368) (1,763) (4,366) (6,992) (4,729)
18,528 22,422 32,140 21,252 34,099
64,957 - (453) . 45,589
190,447 168,015 189,520 134,431 190,874
(15,371) (23,496) (24,071) (14,387) (14,630)
175,076 144,519 165,449 120,044 176,244
171,187 137,813 161,913 118,121 170,997
3,889 6,706 3,536 1,923 5,247
175,076 144,519 165,449 120,044 176,244
166,518 182,629 209,462 223,108 200,888
- 110,004 110,124 109,344 108,489

- 9,595 8,927 9,912 11,696
95,565 70,622 85,317 96,364 128,150
7,528 51,183 43,175 42,893 35,128
21,282 45,629 50,047 57,204 65,006
203,014 149,515 266,970 270,956 330,883
493,907 620,077 774,022 810,281 880,240
(8,682) (13,004) (73,372) (63,027) (20,063)
485,225 607,073 700,650 747,254 860,177
HK$1.11 HK$0.89 HK$1.05 HK$0.77  HK$1.11
N/A HK$0.88 HK$1.04 N/A N/A
HK$0.33 HK$0.43 HK$0.45 HK$0.45  HK$0.75

Notes to the five year summary:

M

(©)

In order to comply with HKFRS 2, “Share-based payment”, the Group adopted a new accounting
policy for employee share options with effect from 1 April 2005. Under the new policy, the
Group recognises the fair value of such share options as an expense with a corresponding
increase recognised in a capital reserve within equity. The new policy was applied retrospectively.
No adjustments to the opening balances as at 1 April 2004 were required as no options existed
at that time.

In prior years, the Group’s share of taxation of associates accounted for using the equity method
was included as part of the Group’s income tax in the consolidated profit and loss account. With
effect from 1 April 2005, in accordance with the implementation guidance in HKAS 1, the Group
changed the presentation and includes the share of taxation of associates accounted for using
the equity method in the respective shares of profit or loss reported in the consolidated profit
and loss account before arriving at the Group’s profit or loss before tax. These changes in
presentation have been applied retrospectively. Figures in years earlier than 2005 are stated in
accordance with the policies before the change on a consistent basis.

In order to comply with HKAS 40, “Investment property” and HK(SIC) Interpretation 21, “lIncome
taxes - Recovery of revalued non-depreciable assets”, the Group changed its accounting policies
relating to movements in the fair value of investment property and deferred tax thereon with
effect from 1 April 2005. In accordance with the transitional provisions of the standards, the
changes have been applied retrospectively. Figures in years earlier than 2005 are stated in
accordance with the policies before the change on a consistent basis.
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